
LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT
AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

September 13, 2018
7:00 P.M.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Roll Call

Approval of the Minutes

Public Comments

Consent Agenda

A. Approval of Ordinance No. 395 -- An Ordinance Abating the Taxes Levied
for the Year 2018 to Pay General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014.

B. Approval of Lake in the Hills Sanitary District's Financial Statements for
the Year Ended April 30, 2018 as presented by George Roach &
Associates.

C. Approval of Annual Treasurers Report for Fiscal Year 2017-- 2018

D. Compensation recommendation for James Olvera per District Managers
recommendation of August 21, 2018.

E. Change Order No. 6 for Sludge Management Project under contract with
Synagro Central LLC.

F. Approval of Application and Certificate for Payment #3 in the amount of
$1 30,042.35 to Energenecs, Inc. for the Reconfiguration of Existing
Hoffman Air Blowers project.

G. Approval of Application and Certificate for Payment #2 in the amount of
$556,869.60 to AMS Mechanical Systems, Inc. for Aerobic Digester #4
project.

H. Appointment of Applied Technologies as District Engineer, subject to the
review and approval of Letter of Engagement by District Manager and District
Attorney.

Specific Agenda

Accountant's Report
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Approval of Bills

Manager's Report

Operations Update

Project Updates

IAWPCO - Nomination for Plant of the Year

Engineers Report

Attorney's Report

Unfinished Business

New Business

Adiournment



Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes

August 9, 2018

Roll Call

The regular meeting was called to order by President Hansen at 7:00 pm at the Sanitary District offices
located at 515 Plum Street. Roll call was answered by President Eric Hansen, Trustee Terry Easier and
Trustee Cheryl Kehoe. Also present were District Manager Rick Fomer, District Attomey Ann Williams
and District Treasurer/Clerk Karen Thompson

Approval of Minutes

Motion was made by Trustee Easier and seconded by Trustee Kehoe to approve the Minutes of the
Regular Board Meeting of July 12, 20 1 8 as presented. On a roll call vote, President Hansen, Trustee
Easier and Trustee Kehoe voted aye.

Public Comments

Joseph Greenwood of Blackberry Court in Lake in the Hills was present. He said that he was bothered by
comments made by one Trustee at last month's meeting regarding transparency. He further elaborated
that less than a year ago, the District was going to purchase land to expand into Kane County and there
was no transparency at that time regarding this land purchase. He said that there needs to be a concerted
effort to be open to the public and get public input on mayor decisions. President Hansen responded and
indicated that the land purchase was a move made by the former Board. He understands Mr.
Greenwood's frustration, but the current Board is now very open and they are all moving in the same
direction .

Consent Agenda

A. Approval of Ordinance No. 393 -- "An Ordinance Levying Taxes for the Lake in the Hills
Sanitary District for Fiscal Year 20 1 8- 201 9"

B. Approval of Ordinance No. 394 "An Ordinance Amending Chapter 4 of the Lake in the Hills
Sanitary District's Code of Rules and Regulations".

C Approval of Change Order #4 in the amount of$14,720.00 to AMS Mechanical Systems, Inc
for Aerobic Digester #4 project.

Motion was made by Trustee Easier and seconded by Trustee Kehoe to approve the Consent Agenda as
presented (Items A C). On a roll call vote President Hansen and Trustees Easier and Kehoe voted aye

SpegififAgg!!d4

None



Accountant's Report

District Treasurer presented copies of the July 20 1 8 Treasurer reports. She commented that July was a
quarterly bill due month. She further stated that we also received two connection/tap on bees in July.
These two factors made July a higher revenue month. July was also a higher expenditure month primarily
because we paid AMS Mechanical and Energenecs almost $330,000 for the Digester #4 and Blowers
projects. She further stated that, as noted on the Govemmental Fund report, we did receive two small
property tax installments in July. Expenditures for July were very consistent.

District Treasurer also presented a drab copy of the Annual Treasurer's Report for fiscal year end April
30, 20 1 8. She provided an explanation of this report and indicated that the final copy will be presented to
the Board for consideration at the September meeting. Once approved, a copy will be published in the
newspaper, added to the District's website and sent to the County.

Trustee Easier wanted to know the percentage of the budget is created from the properly tax levy versus
user fees. District Manager indicated that this year's levy is approximately $662,500 out of a total budget
of over $7 million. Therefore, only a very small percentage comes from the levy.

Motion was made by Trustee Kehoe seconded by Trustee Easier to approve the July 20 1 8 Treasurer
Reports. On a roll call vote President Hansen and Trustees Easier and Kehoe voted aye.

At)t)rival of Bills

District Treasurer presented a list of bills for approval. She noted that we did receive the Knight E/A
invoice for $8,000. She further commented that the Attorney's invoice contained some fees for the
recovery of the lamest money. Those fees have been listed separately on the report. She continued to
state that there were fewer bills on the report this month; most likely because the Board meeting is earlier
in the month and wejust didn't received al I of the bills yet. She further stated that we did not receive our
monthly Synagro invoice in time, therefore, next month we will see two bills from them. She also stated
that she has copies of the bills if anybody wanted to see any detail.

A motion was made by Trustee Easier and seconded by Trustee Kehoe to approve the List of Bills as
presented for payment totaling $ 1 54,621 .82 with $ 1 8,726.50 from the General Corporate Fund,
$ 88,495.32 flom the Operations and Maintenance Fund, $ 47,400.00 from the Construction Fund and
$ 0.00 from the Bond and Interest Fund.

The motion passed acer a roll call vote; President Hansen and Trustees Easier and Kehoe voted aye. (A
copy of the bills approved will be kept with the Board Meeting documents)

Manager's Rel)ort

District Manager presented a written copy of the July 20 1 8 Managers Report and provided a verbal recap
of some items.

In comparison to May and June, July was a relatively dry month. Therefore, the flows to the plant were
down significantly.

There were two call outs in July, but neither were the District's issue

Almost 20,000 feet of televising was done in July. Willalso do a large amount in August



He provided the Board with a copy of the report from the IEPA from the June inspection. It indicates that
the plant is operating well and within the permit requirements. The IEPA indicated that they are short
staffed and may go to a 3-year inspection cycle instead of an annual inspection cycle.

The floor for Digester #4 was poured today. The next step will be placing the wall sections

The sewer line between Willow and Oak has been televised and cleaned. He anticipates that the
contractor will place the pipe lining next week.

Two of the rehabbed blowers have been placed back in service and have been running for over a week.
The additional two blowers will be taken out on Monday for rehab. He anticipates that these will be back
in September.

Jar testing was done for the phosphorus study.
can be completed.

Those results will be in next week so that the final report

He met with Synagro earlier this week regarding the District taking over the pressing portion of the
sludge handling. Synagro was open to doing a change order to the contract. He anticipates this change
order will be ready for Board consideration at the September meeting. We will need to purchase a used,
reasonably priced dump truck and loader. He will speak with the [)istrict Attorney regarding how to
accomplish this. Trustee Easier asked about purchasing used equipment from another municipality.
District Manager said that in the past the McHenry County Municipal League would do an auction of
used equipment. He is not sure if that auction is happening anytime soon or if it will be held within the
timeframe we need. He further stated tllat he did speak with Synagro about purchasing their dump truck
and they will give him a price. Lastly, we may have to do a month-to-month contract with Synagro if
everything is not in place prior to the end of September when the current contract expires. Synagro was
fine with that.

Drab financial statements were presented. District Manager indicated that if the Board has questions he
can either have the Auditor at the September meeting or he can provide a written list of questions to the
Auditor for him to respond to. President Hansen had some questions regarding cash on hand. He wants
to make sure that we are not exceeding any limits. District Manager further stated that we are watching
this and we do have$3.5 million in projects on the books that willneed to be paid out. He also stated that
he has been reducing the levy over the past few years. District Attorney further stated that this is
something to be cognizant of because there is an industry of Attorneys who make a living by doing tax
objections to municipalities.

He presented a duR copy ofChange Order No. 5. It is in draft form because it has not been approved by
District staff and is still being reviewed by the Engineer. He provided the Board with specific details on
the less than ideal soil conditions around Digester #4. The proposed remedy is to add concrete retaining
wall blocks. District Manager indicated that this draft change order is probably a worst-case scenario
regarding cost. The Engineer is still working on the details and is looking at these costs. District
Manager wanted the Board to be aware of this and to confirm that they are okay with moving forward. If
not, construction could be halted. Trustee Easier confirmed that this would be permanent protection and
notjust temporary District Manger conHrmed that these blocks will stay in place and will get backfilled
with the tank. District Manager further stated that this change order #5 would amount to a 3.7% increase
in the cost of the contract.

District Manager stated that he has spoken to President Hansen regarding the contracts for Postl-Yore and
would like to discuss further with the District Attorney after the meeting.



He updated the Board on the open position for District Engineer. There were nine applications taken out
and we received five back. These have been presented to President Hansen and District Attorney
Williams. The RFQ indicated that interviews would be done on or af:ter August 15th. District Manager is
suggesting that the selection committee interview three firms. His recommendation is to interview
Engineering Enterprises, Trotter and Applied Technologies. He indicated that he has no finite position or
opinion regarding who is selected, but these three firms look well suited for the District. President
Hansen further commented that HR Green works with the Village of Lake in the Hills, which could create
some issues. District Manager also indicated that EEI works for the Village of Huntley. President
Hansen indicated that he would be unavailable to sit in the interviews for the next two weeks. Trustee

Easier offered his availability if needed. District Manager further indicated that we do have some
flexibility in scheduling the interviews as long as we can have a recommendation to the full Board at the
September meeting. He indicated he will leave that up to President Hansen and District Attorney
Williams to decide how or when to proceed with the interviews.

Motion was made by Trustee Easier, seconded by Trustee Kehoe to approve the Manager's report as
presented. On a roll call vote President Hansen, Trustee Easier and Trustee Kehoe voted aye.

Engineer's Report

None

Attorney's Report

District Attorney indicated that the McHeniy County States Attorney has agreed to reopen the quo warranto
case. On August 1 6't ' a lawyer from Storino Ramello and Durkin will appear before the samejudge who heard
the original case. This lawyer will present an agreed upon judgement that states that the annexation was
invalid and the appointments of President Hansen and Trustee Kane were legal. Since this is an agreed upon
position all indications point toward the Judge approving this. This is veil good news and having the Judge
I ule on this will help save time and money for the litigation case to recover the lamest money. She further
indicated that the lawyer who will be handling the litigation would like to speak with District Manager and
Trustee Easier to walk thru the factual details. They will arrange a time for that.

Lastly, the District Anomey spoke in relation to Mr. Greenwood's comments about transparency. She
indicated that the ability to conduct closed meetings does exist under the law. Closed meetings are allowed to
discuss such things as litigation or personnel issues. She further stated that under the direction of President
Hansen and the new Board there have been no closed session meetings and even things like litigation, which
are normally discussed in a closed session, have been discussed in an open forum. This is a new expression of
transparency by our current Board and most local governments do not conduct business quite so openly.

Unfinished Business

Discussion took place regarding the County's RPQ for an assessment of the Sanitary District. Trustee
Easier commented that the due date for this has been pushed back. As mentioned previously the other
entities involved don't want to pay for the study. He further stated that the Sanitary District Board would
need to justify spending money on this study to our users. Trustee Easier indicated that most of District's
revenue comes from user fees and not properW tax revenue. Therefore, he believes it is an incorrect
assumption to state that this will be paid for from the same taxpayer funds who would pay to the County,
the City of Crystal Lake or the Villages of Huntley or Lake in the Hills. He has concerns about how
much this study will cost and would want to make sure that the benefits arejustifled to our users before
any funds are expended.



Trustee Easier further added that with the tax levy being reduced over the past few years we may have to
ask for more from the users. He said that he is not opposed to this study being done, but would like all
entities involved to share in the cost. He also stated that he does not believe there are companies out there
who willrespond due to the uniqueness of the RFQ.

President Hansen further commented that before he was on the Board, and had an outsider's perspective,
he thought that consolidation would be easy to accomplish. He now realizes that is not the case,
especially since consolidation is such a new process. He further stated that the legislation simply allows
consolidation to happen, but doesn't outline how to accomplish it.

District Attorney and District Manager indicated that there is some consolidation going on in Lake
County, specifically with the Lakes Region Sanitary District. Trustee Easier indicated that they could
help us navigate thru the steps for consolidation.

New Business

None

Adiournment

There being no further business to bring before the Board, President Hansen asked for a motion to acUoum
the meeting. Motion was made by Trustee Easier and seconded by Trustee Kehoe. The motion passed
after a verbal vote. All Board members who were present voted aye.

The meeting was acUourned at 7:35 pm

Respectfully Submitted,

n Thompson,
District Clerk

APPROVED this day of. , 2018

President Hansen



Ordinance No. 395

An OrdinanceAbating the Taxes Levied.for Year 2018 to Pay General Obligation Bonds
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ORDINANCE NO. 395

An OrdinanceAbatiltg tile Taxes Heretofore Leviedlor the Year 2018
to Pay General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014,

of the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District, McHenry County, Illinois

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District (the
"Z,)ix/r/cf"), in the County of McHenry, State of Illinois, by ordinance adopted on the 12th day of
June, 2014 (the "Ord/nance"), did provide for the issuance of not to exceed $3,900,000 General
Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014, and the levy of a direct annual tax
sufHcient to pay the principal of and interest on said bonds; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ordinance, the District has heretofore issued $3,900,000
General Obligation Bonds (Altemate Revenue Source), Series 2014, dated August 14, 2014 (the
".Bo/zds"), and has filed in the offices of the County Clerk of the County of McHenry, State of
Illinois, (the "Count C/er#''), a Bond Order for the levy of taxes to pay the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the District has Pledged Revenues (as deHtned in the Ordinance) on deposit
in the Bond Fund available for the purpose of paying debt service on the Bonds heretofore
imposed by the 201 8 levy; and

WHEREAS, such Pledged Revenues are hereby directed to be used for the puq)ose of
paying debt service on the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the District that the taxes
heretofore levied for the year 201 8 to pay the Bonds be abated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District in the County of McHenry, State of Illinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: 4ba/emenf of7kues. The taxes heretofore levied for the year 2018 in the
Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety.

SECTION 2: /a//ng of Ordinance. Forthwith upon the adoption of this Ordinance, the
Secretary of the Board of Trustees shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk and it
shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate said taxes levied for the year 201 8 in accordance
with the provisions hereof.

SECTION 3: fWec//ve Z)a/e. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith
upon its adoption and publication in pamphlet form (which publication is hereby authorized) as
provided by law.

Art Ordinance Abating the Taxes Heretofore Leviedfor the Year 2018
to Pay General Obligation Bonds(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014.

ofthe Lake in the Hills Sanitary District, McHenry County, Illinois



SECTION 4: if any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this
Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment
shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullil3' the remainder thereof. which remainder shall remain
and continue in full force and erect.

SECTION 5: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby re
pealed to the extent of such conflict.

Ayes

Nays:

Absent

Abstain

APPROVED

President Eric Hansen

(SEAL,)
A'lTEST

Clerk Karen Thompson

Passed

Approved

Published

Art Ordinance Abating the Taxes Heretofore Lwiedjor the Year 2018
to Pay General Obligation Bonds(Alterrlate Revenue Source), Series 2014.

ofthe Lake in tate Hills Sanitary District, McHenry County, Illinois



CERTIFICATION

1, KAREN THOMPSON, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed and qualified
Clerk of the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk,
I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings of the President and
Board of Trustees of said Lake in the Hills Sanitary District.

I do hereby further certify that at a meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of the
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District, held on the 13th day of September, 2018, the foregoing
O d\nance el\lE\tied An Ordinance Abating the Taxes Heretofore Leviedfor the Year 2018 to
Pay General Obligation Bonds(Altentate Revenue Source), Series 2014, of the Lake itt the
.l#/Zs .SaHlfazy Z)fsfrfcf, McHezzly CbwHO, /27flzois was duly passed and approved by the
President and Board of Trustees of the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District.

The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 395, including the Ordinance and a cover sheet
thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the Lake in the Hills Sanitary
District office, 5 1 5 Plum Street, commencing on the 14th day of September, 201 8, and continu-
ing for at least 10 days thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance were also available for public
inspection upon request in the ofHce of the Sanitary District Clerk.

I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is
entrusted to me as the Clerk of said District for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian
and keeper of the same.

In witness whereof. I have affixed my name as Clerk and caused the seal of said District
to be afHxed hereto this 13th day of September, 201 8.

Karen Thompson, Clerk
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District,
McHenry County, Illinois

(SEAL.)

An Ordinance Abating the Taxes Heretofore Leviedfor the Year 2018
to Pay General Obligation Bonds(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014:

ofthe Lake in the Hills Sanitary District, hfcHenry Couttty, Illinois
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AccoLmting + Auditing Consulting

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the President
and Members of the Board of Trustees

Lake in The Hills Sanitary District

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying fhlancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, ea(h major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lake in The Hills
Sanitary District, Illinois as of and for the year ended April 30, 2018, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errorr

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perfol'm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedu res to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as we]] as eva]uating the overa]] hlancia] statement
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

l



Opinions

In our opinion, tile financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lake in Tbe Hills Sanitary District, illinois as
of April 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accountillg principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required SuTptetnen lamy Injortnatiorl

Accotmting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of finandal deporting fol placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementaryinformation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Of/zer llzHorltzaffon

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of footing opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Lake in The Hills Sanitary District, Illinois' financial statements as a whole.
Tbe individual fund financial statements and sdledules and other information listed as schedules

and other supplementary information in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The individual
hind financial statements and schedules and oU\er information listed as schedules and other

supplementary information in the accompanying table of contents are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

. £c'/

George Roach & Associates, P.C
Crystal Lake, Illinois
July 27, 2018
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

As management of the Lake in The Hills Sanitary District (District), we offer readers of the
District's statements this narrative overview and ana]ysis of the financia] activities of the District
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded its liabilities and

deferred inflows at April 30, 2018 by $46,068,525 (net position).

The District's total net position increased by $415,799. Comprised of $11,999
from activities and $403,800 from contributed capital.

At April 30, 2018, the District's governmen tal funds reported combined
ending fund balances af $1,277,959, an increase of $70,071 in comparison
with the prior year.

At April 30, 2018, the fund balance for the General Fund was $888,889

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I)
government-wide financia] statements, 2) fund financia] statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position

Accrual Basis presents information on all of the District's assets, deferred outflows along with
liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating

The Statement of Activities

Accrual Basis presents information showing how the District's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported on the accrual basis.

The government-wide financial statements show functions of the District that are principally
supported by taxes, fees, and other revenues (governmenta] activities). The District does conduct

functions intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees

3



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include
providing general governmental administrative services. The District conducts business-type
activities by providing wastewater treatment to residences within their planning area.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Govemmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resou rces, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet -- Modified Accrual Basis and
the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Modified Accrual Basis provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between

governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains s individua] governmental funds. The Genera] Fund is used to account
for funds received from general property taxes and other general revenue, and to account for
expenditures made for general District purposes. The Other Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for funds received from taxes and fees and to account for expenditures made for specific
governmental purposes-

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet - Modified Accrual
Basis and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances --Modified Accrual Basis for the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCE.AL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the District's progress in meeting its
obligation to provide as fully adequate as possible services to all of its residents.

The District adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance that includes both the General
Fund and the Audit Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each fund
to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget and appropriation ordinance.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANC]AL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's financial
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows by $46,068,525 at April 30, 2018. The largest portion of the District's net position reflects
its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements, buildings, furniture and
equipment, compu ter equipment, and vehicles); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sou rces, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the District's net position represents resou rces that a re subject to external

restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position may
be used to meet the District's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

GOVE]WMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS(CONTINUED)

Lake in The Hills Sanitary District - Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

4/302018 4/30Qoi7 4/30#olS 4/30/2017 4Bo#ot8 4/30/2017

j $ 7,638,31] $ 7,236,164

42.517,890 42,855,325
Current and Other Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

$ 1,904.814 $ 1,897,645 $ 7,638,311 $ 7,236,164
42,517,890 42,855,325

$50,156,201 $50,091,489

$ 9,543,125 $ 9,133,809
42,517,890 42,855,325

$52,061,015 $ 51,989.134$ 1,904,814 $ 1,897,645

Deferred Outflows $ 92,797 $ 293,872 $ $ $ 92,797 $ 293,872

CurrentandOtherLiabilites$ 669,220$ 986,405

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding
Total Liabilities 669.220 986,405

$ 474,791 $ 485,952
4,328,475 4,542,115

4,803,266 5,028,067

$ 1,144,011 $ 1,472,357
4,328,475 4,542,115

5,472,486 6,014,472

Deferred Inflows 612,801615,808 612,801615,808

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted - Net Position

Unrestricted - Net Position

Total Net Position $

389,070

326,520
715,590

256,165

333,139

$ 589,304

38,047,890 39,180,652 38.047,890 39,180,652

389,070 256,165

7,631,565 6,215,909

$ 46,068.525 $45,652,726
7,305,045 5,882,770

$ 45,352,935 $45,063,422

Govemment-wide activities
the increase are as follows:

increased the District's net position by $11,999. The key elements of

Lake in The Hlills Sanitary District - Activites and Changes in Net Position
GovernmentaIActivities Business-Type Activities Total
4n0/2018 4/30/2017 4/30/2018 4/30/2017 4/30/2018 4/30/2017

Program Revenues

Charges for Services
General Revenues

Property Taxes

Personal Property Taxes
Safety grant
Gain from sale of equipment
Interest

$ $ $ 3,875,606 $ 4,131,308 $ 3,875,606 $ 4,131,308

603,603
1,561

596,543
1,915

1,899

603,603
1,561

596,543
1,915
1,899

4,700
12.973

Total Rev enues

Expenses
General Government

Sewerage services
Debt service

Total Expenses

2,619

607,783

2,049

602,406

2,605
33,462

3,911,673

4,700
l0,924

4,146,932

2,605
36,081

4,519,456 4,749,338

481,497

481,497

596,963

596,963

3,857,535

168,425
4,025,960

3,519,855
174,643

3,694,498

481,497
3,857,535

168,425
4,507,457

596,963
3,519,855

174,643
4,291,461

Increase/(Decrease) in Net I'osition 126,286

589,304

5,443

583,861

(114,287)

45,063,422

452,434

44,610,988

11,999 457,877

45,194,849Net Position - Beginning of Year 45,652,726

Capitcal Contributions
N et Position - End of Year $ 715,590 $ 589,304

403,800

$45,352,935 $45,063,422

403,800

$46,068,525 $45,652,726
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

2018 REVENUES
ROUND TO NEAREST PERCENT

Interest, $36,081 , 1%

Property Taxes, $603,603 , 13%...
Gain on asset sale. $2.605 , 0%

Replacement
Taxes, $1,561 , 0%

Proprietary Activities
$3,875,606 , 86%

2018 EXPENSES
ROUND 'lD NEAREST PERCENT General

Government,
$481,497 , 11%Debt Service

$168,425 , 4%

Proprietary Activities,
$3,857,535 , 85%
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

h/MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRil 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Govenunental funds

The focus of the District's governmenta] funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the District's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At April 30, 2018, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending, fund balances of

$],277,959, an increase of $70,071 in comparison with the prior year.

General Fund (Corporate Fund)

The focus of the District's General Fund is to provide information on the revenues and
expenditures of the funds that the District receives from its corporate property tax levy and from
other unrestricted sources such as personal property replacement taxes, and interest on bank
deposits, and associated expenditures.

The General Fund balance at April 30, 2018 was $888,889, which was an increase of $23,426 during
the year ended April 30, 2018.

Other Govemmental Funds

The focus of the District's Other Governmental Funds are to provide inf ormation on the revenues
and expenditures of the funds that the District receives from its property tax levy, interest on bank
deposits, and associated expenditures.

The Other Governmental Fund balances at April 30, 201 8 were $389,070, which was an increase of
$46,645 du ring the year ended April 30, 2018.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District amended its original budget and appropriations ordinance for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2018, on April 1 8, 2018; therefore, the amou nts shown as original and final appropriations
are adjusted for the amendment.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

Proprietary funds

The focus of the District's proprietary fund is to provide the same type of information found in
the govern ment-wide financial statements, bu t in more detail.

At April 30, 2018, the District's proprietary fund reported ending net position of $45,352,935, a
decrease of $1 14,287 in comparison with the prior year.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets

The District's investment in capital assets for its proprietary activities as of April 30, 2018 amounts
to $42,51 7,889 net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
land improvements, infrastructure, buildings, furrUture and equipment, computer equipment,
and vehicles. The total increase in the District's investment in capital assets for the year ended
April 30, 201 8 was $748,397 attributable to the purchase of various assets offset by disposals.

Proprietary Fund - Capital Assets
Balance

May 1, 2017

$ 446,489

65,590

39,527,809

22,066,992

3,448,896

1,298,177

670,310

58,545

67,582,808

24,215,404

$ 43,367,404

Balance

Apd1 30, 2018

$ 446,489

651,933

39,674,266

22,066,992

3,478,648

1,298,177

656,155

SSJ4S

68,331,205

25,813,3 1 6

42,517,889

Fixed Assets

Land

Construction in progress
Plant and lift stations

Sew er trunkline

Equipment

Administration building
Vehicles

Equipment & furniture
To tal Fixed Assets

Less: Accumulated l:kpreciation
Fixed Assets (Net)

Increases

$

586,343

146,457

Decreases

$

37,047 7,295

29,790 43,945

799,637

1,597,912

$ (798,275)

51,240

$ 51,240



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS (AT COST)

Fumiture & Equipment,$3,537,193
Land. $446,489

Construction in Progress,$651,933

Vehicles, $656,155
Buildings, $1,298,177

System
Infrastructure

$61,741,258

Long-term debt

At April 30, 2018, the District had two bond issues outstanding consisting of combined current
principal due of $205,000 and long-term due of $4,328,475. The bond proceeds are being used to
fund additional infrastructure and construction projects.

ECONOMIC FACTOlqS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Trustees of the District considered the following factors in preparing the budget and
appropriations ordinance for the District, which was adopted for the 2017-2018 fiscal year:

. The equalized assessed valuation (EAV) for the District for 2016 is

$718,670,206. This represents an increase in EAV of $40,421,678 in
comparison with the prior year.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

ASSESSED VALUATIONS, EXTENDED TAX RATES
PERCENTAGE ALLOCATIONS, EXTENDED TAX RATES

TAX LEVY YEAR 2017 2016

ASSESSED VALUATION
2015

McHenry County $ 718,670,206 $ 678,248,528 $ 636,448,576

TAX RATES AND PERCENTAGE
ALLOCATIONS BY FUND
FundsRate
General Fund 0.040260
Chlorination 0.002800

Liability Insurance 0.019070
Social Security 0.006500
IMRFO.014800
Audit0.002700

Totals0.086130

Percentage
46.75

3.25

22.14
7.55

17.18

3.13
100.00

Rate

0.040260
0.002800
0.022000
0.006500
0.014800
0.002700
0.089060

Percentage
45.21
3.14

24.70
7.30

16.62

3.03
100.00

Rate

0.040452
0.002000

0.024500
0.007816
0.016000

0.003122
0.093890

Percentage
43.08
2.13

26.09
8.32

17.04

3.33
100.00

Property Tax Extensions
Funds
General Fund

Chlorination

Liability Insurance
Social Security
IMRF
Audit

Totals

2017

$ 289,337
20,123

137,050
46,714

106,363
19,404

$ 61 8,991

2016

$ 273,063
18,991

149,214
44,086

100,381
18,313

$ 604,048

2015

$ 257,456
12,729

155,930
49,745

101,832
19,870

$ 597,562
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2018

REQUESTS FOR INF0]iMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all
those with an interest in the District's finances. Questions concerning any of the information

provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
District Manager, Lake in The Hills Sanitary District, 515 Plum St., Lake in The Hills, Illinois 60156.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Government-loide - S tatetnettt of Net Position

.April 30, 20Z8

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Assets

Cash

Accounts receivable

Property tax receivable

Other deposits

Deposit with paying agent
Fixed Assets

$ 1,292,013

612,801

$ 6,656,652

590,871

$ 7,948,665

590,871

612,801

100,000

290,788
42,517,890

100,000

290,788

42,517,890

Total Assets
$ 1,904,814 $ 50,156,201 $ 52,061,015

Deferred Outflows - IMRF $ 92,797 $ 92,797

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Accrued interest

Current portion - revenue bonds

Developer deposits

Total Current Liabilities

$ 14,054 $ 167,910

13,927

85,788

205,000

2,166

$ 181,964

13,927

85,788

205,000

2,166

14,054 474,791 488,845

Noncurrent Liabilities
Revenue bonds payable
Revenue bond discount

Pension liability - IMRF

4,265,000

63,475

4,265,000
63,475

655,166655,166

655,166

669,220

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,328,475

4,803,266

4,983,641

Total Liabilities 5,472,486

Deferred Inflow - Property taxes 612,801 612,801

N et Position

Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

38,047,890 38,047,890

389,070

7,631,565

389,070

326,520

715,590

7,305,045

$ 45,352,935Total N et Position
$ $ 46,068,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
13
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT
Gooernmenta! Ftlnds - Balance Sheet

April 30, 2018

Other
Governmental

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds
General

Fund

Assets

Cash

Property tax receivable

$

$

902,943

286,444

1,189,387

$

$

389,070

326,357

715,427

$

$

1,292,013

612,801

1,904,814Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable/accruals $ 14,054 $

14,054

$ 14,054

14,054Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows - Property taxes 286,444

300,498

326,357

326,357

612,801

626,855Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

Fund Balance

Non spendable
Restricted
Committed

Assigned - capita] improvements

Unassigned

389,070 389,070

888,889

888,889

888,889

] ,277,959Total Fund Balance 389,070

Total Liabilities,
Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balance $ 1,189,387 $ 715,427 $ 1,904,814

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Gooetnmentat Funds - Statement ofReoentles, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended April 30, 2018

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

General

Funds
Revenues

Property taxes

Replacement taxes
Interest

$ 272,874

1,561

2,619

277,054

$ 330,729 $ 603,603

1,561

2,619

607,783Total Revenue 330,729

Expenditures
Personal services
Contractual services

Commodities
Other

161,881

62,279

29,233
235

161,881

346,363

29,233
235

284,084

Total Expenditures 253,628 284,084

46,645

537,712

Net Change in Fund Balance 23,426 70,071

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning 865,463

888,889 $

342,425

389,070 $

1,207,888

1,277,959Total Fund Balance, Ending $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Gouemmmtat Funds -Recotlciliations of the Gouernmmtal Fund
Balance to Net Position

Year Ended April 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds
$ 1,277,959

Deferred pension outflows/inflows and net pension liabilities
are not reported in funds.

Deferred pension outflows

Net pension liabilities

92,797

(655,166)

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities
$

715,590

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures
Governmental Funds

$ 70,071

Change in deferred pension outflows/inflows and net pension liabilities
are not reported in funds. 56,215

126.286Changes in Net Position Governmental Funds $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Proprietary Futtd - Statement ofNet Position

Apri13Q. 2018

Assets

Cash

Sewer billings receivable, net

Deposit with paying agent

Other deposits

Fixed assets (net of

accumulated depreciation)

Total Assets

$ 6,656,652

590,871

290,788

100,000

42,517,890

50,156,201
$

Liabilities

Accounts payable/accruals

Accrued payroll

Accrued interest payable

Developer deposit

Revenue bonds payable - current portion

Revenue bonds payable - long term

Revenue bonds - long term premium

$ 167,910

13,927

85,788

2,166

205,000

4,265,000

63,475

Total Liabilities 4,803,266

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

38,047,890

7,305,045

Total Net Position 45,352,935

Total Liabilities and N et Position
$

50,156,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Proprietary Fund - Statement ofReoenues, Expenses, attd Changes in Net Position

Year Ended April 30, 2018

Sewerage

Enterprise
Fund

Revenues

Sewer (barges
Miscellaneous

$ 3,859,971

15,635

3,875,606Total Revenues

Expenses
Persormel

Contractual service
Commodities

Other expenditures
Total Expenses

472,835

247,957

1,298,773

192,459

2,212,024

Operating Income Before Depreciation/Amortization 1,663,582

1,645,511Less: Depreciation/Amortization

Operating Income (Loss) 18,071

Non-Operating Income(Expense)
Interest expense and fees
Gain on sale of assets

Interest income

(168,425)

2,605

33,462

Total Non-operating Income/(Expense) (132,358)

Net Income (Loss) (114,287)

Net Position

Balance, beginning of year

Capitalized connection fees

45,063,422

403,800

Total Net Position
$ 45,352,935

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Proprietary Fund - Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ettded April 30, 2018

Sewerage

Enterprise
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from customers and users

Cash paid to suppliers

Cash and benefits paid for employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 3,790,886

(1,603,695)

(472,835)

1,714,356

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
System additions (799,637)

(799,637)Net Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Financing Activities
Interest income

Gain from sale of assets

Bond interest and fees

Bond/note payments, net

33,462

2,605

(168,425)

(205,000)

Net Cash Flows Provided by Capital and Financing Activities (337,358)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 577,361

Connection Fees Capitalized

Cash at Beginning of Year

403,800

5,675,491

Cash at End of Year
$ 6,656,652

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) for the year

[)epreciation and amortization

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in deposits with paying agent

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable

Increase (decrease) in deferred compensation

$ 18,071

1,645,511

69,085

(2,150)

(6,808)

(2,850)

(6,503)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1,714,356

Cash payments for interest made during the year were $168,425

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Lake in The Hills Sanitary District (the District) conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable
to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used
by the District.

REPORTING ENTITY

The District has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities that
benefit the citizens of the District should be included within its financial reporting entity. The
criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the District exercises oversight responsibility on
financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability

to significantly influence opera Lions and accountability for fiscal matters, scope of public service
and special financial relationships.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business type activities, which rely
significantly on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or identifiable activity are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (a) charges to
customers or applicants who pu rchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or identifiable activity; and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
identifiable activity. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as genera] revenue

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenue is recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon
as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected

within the current period or soon enough thereaf ter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditu res, expenditures relating
to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recognized only when payment is due.

Property taxes, state-shared revenue, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of
the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
All other revenue items are considered to be available only when cash is received by the District.

The government reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resou rces
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds

The Sewer O&M Fund is used to account for the treatment of sewerage of the District's citizens

User charges to customers account for substantially all of the revenue of this fund.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES (CONTINUED)

Many of the District's funds combine their cash in a common cash account inc]uded in the genera]
fund where available cash is invested. Interest is earned from commingled checking in the
general fund.

CASH

For purposes of cash and cash equivalent determination, Lake in The Hills Sanitary District
considers all cash, investments, investmen ts in Illinois Funds, and short-term Certificates to be

cash equivalents.

INVESTMENTS

Investment balances consist of savings account balances, certificates of deposit, investments in
government securities, and shares in the Illinois Funds. Investment cost or amortized cost of
investments approximate market value. The funds included in the Pool participate in the
earnings of the Pool in proportion to their average balance therein. Should any of these funds
have an average deficit in the Pool, they are charged interest accordingly. Currently, the District
has no balances classified as investments.

RECEIVABLES AND REVENUE RECOGNITION

Property taxes receivable are recognized at the time they are levied. Property taxes are levied
and attached as an enforceable lien on property on January I and are payable in two installments
on June I and September I subsequent to the year of levy. The tax levy for 2017 property taxes
was adopted August 25, 2017. That portion of the property taxes which are not available for the
current year's operations are shown as deferred revenue

Income from investments, accounts, and unbilled usage receivables are recognized when earned.
Licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, fees and refunds, charges for service (other than
enterprise funds), miscellaneous and other revenues are recorded as revenue when received in
cash, as they are generally not measurable until actually received.

FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can
be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financia! Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POHCIES (CONTINUED)

blenS2e!!dalZlf - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The

District has classified prepaid items as being Nonspendable

Be$!rlcled:.-- This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

fem!!!!!!ed - This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pu rsuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the District Board. These amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the District Board removes or changes the specified use by
taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were
initia[[y committed. This c]assification a]so inc]udes contractua] obligations to the extent that
existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual
requirements. The District did not have any committed resou rces as of April 30, 2018.

Asslgofd - This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed
by the District Board or through the District Board delegating this responsibility to the District
manager through the budgetary process. This classification also includes the remaining positive
fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund.

!Jnasslgned - This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the

amount established for Minimum Funding which represents the portion of the General Fund
balance that has been established by the board to be used for debt service or in emergency
situations.

The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmenta] fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts.

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resou rces,
and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ettded April 30, 2018

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONCLUOEO)

EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS USED IN THE GOVERNMENT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N€1 !py€$tment in Capital Assets consists of the historical cost of capital assets less

accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance
those assets.

Restricted Net Position - This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been

placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a
debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b)
imposed by law trough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted N et Position all other net position is reported in this category

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District's investment policies a re governed by state statutes whereby District money must be
deposited in FDIC - insured banks located within the state. Permissible investments include
demand accounts and certificates of deposits.

The District's pooled and nonpooled deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of
risk assumed by the District at April 30, 2018. The categories are described as follows:

Category I Insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent in
the entity's name
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent in the entity's name
Uncollateralized.

Category 2

Category 3

Category

2

Bank

Balance
Cad:ying
Value

Pooled deposits

Checking/Savings $ 3,335,293

Totals $ 3,335,293

l 3

$

$

$ 4,617,678

$ 4,617,678

$ 7,952,971

$ 7,952,971

$ 7,948,665

$ 7,948,665
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financia! Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 3 PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The property and equipment of the proprietary type fund consists of

Proprietary Fund - Capital Assets
Balance

M.ay 1, 2017

$ 446,489

65,590

39,527,809

22,066,992

3,448,896

1,298,177

670,310

58,545

67,582,808

24,215,404

$ 43,367,404

Balance

April 30, 2018
$ 446,489

651,933

39,674,266

22,066,992

3,478,648

1 ,298,177
656,155

58,545

68,331,205

25 ,813 ,316
$ 42,517,889

Fixed Assets

Land

Construction in progress
Plant and lift stations

Sewer trunkline

li:luipment
Administration building
Vehicles

Office furniture & equipment
Total Fixe d Assets

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Fixed Assets (N et)

Increases

$

586,343

146,457

Decreases

$

37,047 7,295

29,790 43,945

799,637

1,597,912

$ (798,275)

51,240

$ 51,240

The aggregate depreciation charged to operations is $1,597,912

NOTE 4 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT

IMRE PLAN DESCRIPTION

The District's defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and
disability benefits, post-retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The District's plan is managed by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF),
the administrator of a multi-employer public pension fund. A summary of IMRF's pension
benefits is provided in the "Benefits Provided" section of this document. Details of all benefits
are available from IMRF. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed
by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMltF issues a publicly available Comprehensive
Annua[ Financia[ Report that includes financia] statements, detai]ed information about the
pension plan's fiduciary net position, and required supplementary information. The report is
available for download at www.imrf.org

BENEFITS PROVIDED

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMlIF members participate in the Regular Plan

(]iP). The Sheriff's Law En forcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT (CONTINUED)

selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials
elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants af ter that date).
All three IMlIF benefit plans have two tiers. Employees hired bi?/ore January 1, 2011, are eligible
for Tier I benefits. Tier I employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight
years of qualifying service credit. Tier I employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or
af ter age 60(at fullbenefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of eamings for the first 15
years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit af ter 15 years to a maximum of 75%
of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any
consecutive 48 months within the last 1 0 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension
is increased by 3% of He original amount on January I every year after retirement.
Employees hired on or lz#erJanuary 1, 20111, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees,
pension benefits vest af ter ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at
reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of
earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit af ter 15
years to a maximum of 75% of their final ra te of earnings. Final rate of eamings is the highest total

earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96.
Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January I every year af ter retirement, upon reaching
age 67, by the lessa ' of:

3% of the original pension amount, or
1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price ]ndex of the origina] pension amount

As of December 31, 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms

IMRF
8

4

10

22

Retirees and Beneficiaries cunently receiving benefits

Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active Plan Members
Total

CONTRIBUTIONS -

As set by statute, the District's Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5% of their
annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The
District's annual contribution rate for calendar year 2017 was 20.64%. For the fiscal year ended
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
No1:es to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 ll,HNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUEO)

April 30, 2018, the District contributed $121,610 to the plan. The District also contributes for
disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled
at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by IMlIF's Board of
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute

NET PENSION LIABILITY -

The District's net pension ]iabi]ity was measured as of December 31, 2017. The tota] pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS -

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at
December 31, 2017:

The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.
The Asset Valuation Method used was Market Value of Assets

The Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.50%.

Salary Increases were expected to be 3.39% to 14.25%, including inflation.
The Investment Rate of Return was assumed to be 7.50%.

Projected Retirement Age was from the Experience-based Table of Rates, specific to the
type of eligibility condition, last updated for the 2017 valuation according to an
experience study from years 2014 to 2016.

. The IMRF-specific rates for Mortality (for non-disabled retirees) were developed from
the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match
current IMlZF experience.
For Disabled Retirees, an IMltF-specific mortality table was used with fully generational
projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from

the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments that were
applied for non-disabled lives.

. For Active Members, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fu]]y generationa]
projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). The IMlZF-specific rates were developed from
the ]lP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRE
experience

. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return to the
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Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 ILHNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUED)

target asset allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation
and best estimates of geometric rea] rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return

6.85%
6.75%
3.00%
5.75%
2.65-7.35%
2.25%

Portfolio
Target
Percentage

38%
17%
27%
8%
9%
1%

100%

Asset Class

Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Real Estate
Alternative Investments

Cash Equivalents
Total
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 ll.I.INO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUED)

Executive Sununary as of Decentber 31, 2017

Ac tuarial Valuation [)ate

Measurement Date of tile Net Pension Liability
Fiscal Ye ar End

Membe rship
Number of

Re tire es and Be ne fic ia=ries

inactive, Non-Retired Men:tiers
Active Members

To tal

Covered Valuation Payroll (1)

Net P ension Liability

To tal Pension Liability/(Asse t)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Ne t Pension Liability/(Asse t)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of To tal Pension Liability

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covere d Valuation Pay roll
Development of the Single Discount Rate as of Decentber 31, 2017

Long.Term Expected Rate o f investment Return
Long-TeJln Mul'dcipaIBond Rate(2)
Lastyear ending December 31 in the 2018 to 2117 projection period

for which projec ted benefit payments are fully funded
Resulting Single Discount Rate based on tile above development

Single Discount Rate calculated using December 31, 2016
Me azure ment Date

TotalP ensign Expense/(Income)
Deferred Outflows and Deferred liUlows of Resources by Source to be
recognized in Future P ension Expenses

12/31/2017
12/31/2017
4/30/2018

8

4

10

22

589.197$

$ 3,216,047
2,560,881

$ 655,166

79.63%

I ll .20%

7.50%

3.31%

2117

7.50%

7.50%

148,088$

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

$ 125,927

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ 3,904

99,191
Di#erence between expec ted and ac dual experience
Changes in asstunptions

Net di#erence between projec ted and actual eanlings on pension plan
investme nts

To tal

65,435 181,064
$ 191,362 $ 284,]59

(1) [)oes not necessarily represent Covered Employee Payroll as defined in GASP Statement Nas. 67-68.

(2) Source: Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as

reported in Fidelity index's "20-Year Municipal Go AA Index" as of December 29, 201 7. }n describing this index, Fidelity notes that the

municipal curves are constructed usirlg option-adjusted analytics of a diverse population of over tO,OOO tax exempt securities
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NOTE 4 ILUNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUED)

SINGLE DISCOUNT RATE -

A Single Discotmt Rate of 7.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection
of cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members'
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and
the member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period
in which the fiduciary net position is projected to be su fficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation
bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as
of the measu rement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term
expected rate of return are not met)

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of retum on plan investments is
7.50%, the municipal bond rate is 3.78%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.50%.

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT

The following presents the plan's net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of
7.50%, as well as what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

RATE
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NOTE 4 ILHNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUED)

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Current Period
Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2017

A. Tota] pension ]iabMty

1. Se rvice Cost

2. Interest on the Total Pension Liability

3. Change s of bene fit te rms

4. Difference betwe en expected and actual experience

of the Total Pension Liability
5. Changes of assumptions
6. Be neat payments, including refunds

of employee contributions
7. Net change in total pension liability
8. Total pension liability beginning
9. Total pe nsion liabiHty -- e nding

B. Plan fiduciary net position
1. Contributions employer

2. Contributions employee
3. Ne t inve stment income

4. Be neat payments, including re funds

of employee contributions
5. Other (Net Transfe r)

6. Net change in plan fiduciary net position
7. Plan fiduciary net position be ginnhlg
8. Plan fiduciary net position ending

C. Net pension liabMty/(asset)

D. Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

E. Covered Valuation payroll
F. Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered valuation payroll

$ 6Z9S2

235,467

(4,651)

(106,741)

(163,139)

28,888

3,187,159

$ 3,216,047

$ 121,610

26,514

391,039

(163,139)

(37,539)

338,485

2,222,396

2,560,881

655,166

$

$

79.63%

$ 589,197

111.20%

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to the Single discount rate Assumption

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Ne t Position
Ne t Pe nsion LiabiHty/(Asse t)

32

  Current Single  
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6.50% Assumption 7.50% 8.50%

$ 3,702,942 $ 3,216,047 $ 2,820,799
2,560,881 2,560,881 2,560,881

$ 1,142,061 $ 655,166 $ 259.918
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Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 ILHNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUED)

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred
to Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2018, the District recognized pension
30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows or resources and
related to pensions from the following sources:

Inflows of Resources Related

expense of $121,610. At April
deferred inflows of resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Del:erred

Inflows of
Resources

Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions

Deferred Atnotlnts to be Recognized in Pensions

Expenses in Future Periods

Differences between expected and actual

Changes of assumptions

Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments

$ 125,927 $ 3,904

99,191

65,435 181,064

Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions $ 191,362 $ 284,159

Amounts reported as deferred ou tflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in lulu re periods as follows:

Year Ending
December 31

2018
2019
2020
2021

2022
Thereafter

Total

Net Deferred
Outflows of Resources

33

$   (1,647)

    (1,646)

    (30,392)

    (39,213)

    (15,817)
    (4,082)     

$   (92,797)



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
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Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 4 IH,INO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONTINUEO)

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in the Calculation of the
2017 Contribution Rate ''

Valuation Date: December 31, 2017

Notes Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculate d
as of December 31 each year, Mnich are 12 monUas prior
to tile begiruaing ol: tile fiscal year in which
contributions are reported

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine 2017 Contribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Aggregate Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage ol Payroll, Closed
Remainhlg Amortization Period Non-Taxing bodies: 10-year rolling period.

Taxing bodies (Regular, SLEP and ECO groups):

26-ye ar close d pe dod mltil re mailing pe dod re a ches

10 years (then 10-ye ar rolling period)

Early Retirement Incentive Plan liabilitie s
a period up to 10 years selected by
the Employe r upon adoption of ERI
SLEP supplemental liabilities attributable to Public Act 94-712
were financed ove r 21 years for most employers
(two employers we re finance d oven ' 30 years).

Asset Valua bon Me trod

Wage growtla
Price Inflation

5-Ye a r smoothe d marke t; 20% corridor
3.50%

2.75% -- approximate; N6 explicit price inflation assumption
is use d in tlais valua bon

3.75% to 14.50% including inflation
7.50%

Experience-based table of rates that aie specific to the type of
eligibility condition. Last upda ted for the 2014 valuation pursuant
to an experience study of the period 2011 - 2013.
Foi non-disabled retirees, an Ih/[RF specific morta]ity tab]e w,as used with fu]]y
generational proje ction scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific rate s
were developed from tile RP-2014 Blue Collar IHe ahh Annuitant Mortality Table
with adjustments to match current I.N'IRF experience . For disabled retirees, an
IM]R.F specific table was used with fully generational projection scale .N{P-2014

(base year 2012). '1he IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled
Retirees Mortality Table applyhlg tile same adjustments that were applied for non-
disabled lives. For active members, an INIRF specific morality table was used with
fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base ye ar 2012). The IN4RF specific

rates u,ere developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments
to match current INnltF experience .

Salary Incre uses
Investment Ra te of Re turn
Re heinent Age

Mortality

Other Information
Notes 'there were no benefit changes during the year

Based on Valuation Assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation
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NOTE 4 ILHNO1S MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT(CONCLUDED)

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
USED IN THE CALCULATION OF THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Price Inflation

Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Used to Determine Total Pension Liability:
Entry Age Normal
Market Value of Assets
'') r7 R o£

3.75% to 14.50%
7.50%

Experience-based table of ra tes that are specific to the type of eligibility
condition. Last updated for the 201 4 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2011-2013.
For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used
with fully generational projection scale MI ' 2014 (base year 2012). The

IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar }iealth
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF
experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF specific table was used with
fully generational proj ection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). '1be IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality
Table applying the same adjustments that were applied for non-disabled
lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with
fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF
specific rates were developed hom the RP-2014 nnployee Mortality Table

with adjustments to match current IMRE experience.

Mortality

C)cher ]n formation
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year

*Based ol! Valuation Assumptions t£sed {n the December31, 2015 aetna hlualt£ation
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Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT

Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs. For insured
programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts
have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.

NOTE 6 EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

No fund had expenditures that exceeded the appropriations

NOTE 7 - SEWERAGE GENERAL OBHGATION (AI.TERNATE REVENUE BONDS)

The Sewerage Debt Certificates, Series 2008 dated February 6, 2008 were issued during February
2008 for constructing improvements of the sanitary sewerage system. The debt certificates are
collateralized by the net revenue of the Lake in The Hills Sanitary District and will be paid each

year beginning May 1, 2008, until retired. The debt certificates carry interest rates ranging from
3.700% to 4.875% and mature May 1, 2017 through May 1, 2027. The certificates maturing on or
af ter 2019 are subject to redemption prior to maturity. The Sewerage General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2014A dated November 13, 2014 were issued during November 2014 for capital projects of
the District. The bonds are collateralized by the net revenue of the Lake in The Hills Sanitary
District and will be paid each year beginning May 1, 2008, until retired. The bonds carry interest
rates ranging from 2.000% to 4.000% and mature May 1, 2017 through May 1, 2039. The
certificates maturing on or af ter 2025 are subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Long-term liability activity for the year ended April 30, 2018 was as follotvs

Business-Type Activites: Long-Term Debt
Bond Dated February 6, 2008
Bond Dated November 13, 2014

Total Business.Type Long-Term Debt Obligation

Long-term liabilites at April 30, 2018

Business-Type Activates: Long-Ternt Debt
Bond Dated February 6, 2008
Bond Dated November 13. 2014

Nlaturity Interest
DatesRates

Face Carrying
Amount Amounts

5/1/2017 3.700% - 4.875%
5/1/2039 2.000% - 4.000%

$ 2,000,000 $ 1,245,000
$ 3,430,000 $ 3,230,000
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          Amounts
Balance       Balance Due Within

May 1, 2017   Additions Retirements April 30, 2018 One Year
$ 1,345,000 $   $ 100,000 $ 1,245,000 $ 105,000

3,330,000     100,000 3,230,000 L OO.Ooo

4,675.000     200,000 4,475,000 2o5.oo0



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Yectr Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - SEWERAGE GENERAL OBLIGATION (AI.TERNATE REVENUE BONDS)
(CONCLUDEO)

Debt service activity with principal and interest payments due in year ended April 30 are as
follows:

Long Term Debt Maturity Schedule

Fiscal Year
En ded Due

4/30/20 19
4/30/2020
4D0/2021

4D0/2022
4/30/2023
4/30/2024
4/30/2025

4D0/2026
4B0/202V
4/30/2028
460/2029
4D0/2030

4/30/2031 -4/30/2040
Total Debt

Bonds Dated February 6, 2008

Outstanding April 30, 2018
Principal Interest

105,000 54,291
105,000 49,697
1 1 0,000 44,994
1 15,000 40,072
120,000 34,856
125,000 29,344
130,000 23,606
140,000 1 7,531
145,000 10,847
150,000 3,656

Bond Dated N ovember 13, 2014
Outstanding April 30, 2018

Principal Interest
100,000 113,988
105,000 111,413
110,000 108,188

110,000 104,888
115,000 101,513
120,000 97,388
125,00092,488
125,000 87,956
130,000 83,813

135,00079,506
140,000 75,038
145,00070,406

1,770,000 370,503
3,230,000 $ 1,497,084

Prin apa I
205,000
210,000
220,000

225,000
235,000
245,000
255,000
265,000
275,000

285,000
140,000
145,000

1,770,000
$ 4,475,000

Totals
In ter es t

168,279
161,110
153,182

144,960
136,369
126,732
116,094
105,487
94,660

83,162
75,038
70,406

370,503
1,805,978$ 1,245,000 $ 308,894 $

NOTE 8 - CONTINGENCIES

The District is not aware of any pending litigation or potential non-disclosed liabilities that
management believes would have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

NOTE 9 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through July 27, 2018, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
Notes to The Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended April 30, 2018

NOTE IO DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

As of these financial statements, the District has adopted GASP Statement No. 65, which
redefined how certain financial statement elements are presented in the statement of financial
position. The elements are classified as follows:

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditu re) until
then. The District has no items in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The District has only one type of item, which arises on]y under a modified accrua] basis of
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported on]y in the governmenta] funds balance sheet. Deferred inflows of resources
($612,801) reported in the governmental funds for unavailable revenues are all from property
taxes to be received in the following year.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

General Fund - Schedule ofRwettues, Expenditures Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Act {al

Year Ended Apl'il 30, 2018

Budget

Original Final

Actual

Amounts
Revenues

Property taxes
Replacement tax
Interest

$ 273,000 $ 273,000 $ 272,874

1,561

2,619

277,054

I,ooo

274,000

I,ooo

274,000Total Revenues

Personnel Services

Salaries and payroll taxes 168,000 168,000 161,881

Contractual Services

Professional engineering
Legal services
Other professional services

40,000

15,000

5,000

60,000

40,000

15,000

5,000

60,000

30,949

16,894
941

48,784Total Contractual Services

Administrative Expenses
Printing, publications
Office supplies, equipment

Postage
Treasurer's bond

Community affairs
Membership and dues

Total Administrative Exepens

4,000
3,000

I,ooo
3,500

2,000

4,500

4,000
3,000

I,ooo
3,500
2,000

4,500

4,183

2,146
77]

3,000
271

3,124

18,000 18,000 13,495

Operating Expenses
Building and grounds upkeep
Utilites
J.U.L.i.E.

Training and education
Travel expenses

Computer hardware, software & Support

12,000

28,000

2,500

2,000

2,000

8,000

12,000

28,000

2,500

2,000

2,000

8,000

6,556

16,991

2,472
]95

82

2,937

Total Operating Expenses 54,500 54,500 29,233

Contingency and Miscellaneous Expenses
Not otherwise appropriated I,ooo

I,ooo

301 ,500

I,ooo

I,ooo

301,500

235

235

253,628

Total Congency and Miscellaneous Expenses

Total General Fund

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (27,500) $ (27,500) 23,426

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning 865,463

$ 888,889Total Fund Balance, Ending
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT ILLINOIS

Notes to Required Supplemental Itljormation
Year Ended April 30, 2018

The accounting policies of the District include the preparation of financial statements on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The District prepares its budget on the cash basis of
accounting

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenue is recognized as soon as it is both
measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected within the

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay ]iabi]ities of the current period. Genera] capital
assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Proceeds from
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However; expenditures relating to compensated absences, debt service
expenditures, and claims and judgments are recognized only when payment is due.

Appropriation ordinances are adopted at the function level in the General Fund and total General
Fund expenditures disbursed may not legally exceed the budgeted amount. Appropriations
lapse at year end unless specifically carried over. There were no carryovers to the following year.

The District procedures in establishing the appropriation data reflected in the General Fund
Financial Statements are presented below:

e Prior to July 15"' the District Board receives a proposed appropriation
ordinance for the fiscal year commencing on May 1". The appropriation
ordinance includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

A public hearing is conducted at a public meeting to obtain taxpayers
comments.

' The appropriation ordinance is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance prior to July 31"

. The District Treasurer, in conjunction with the Board, is authorized to expend
the un-expended balance of any item or items of any general appropriation in
making up any deficiency in any item or items of the same general
appropriation.

The original appropriation ordinance was passed on May 11, 2017 and
amended on April 18, 2018.

Formalbudgetary integration is not employed as a management control device
during the year for any fund.
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT ILLINOIS
Notes to Required Supplements! l7iformation

Year Ended April 30, 2018

Appropriation comparisons presented in the accompanying financial
statements are prepared on the modified accrual and accrual basis of
accounting. Govemmental funds utilize the modified accrual basis of
accounting, and the business type funds use the accrual basis of accounting for
both appropriation purposes and actual results.

e Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at the fund level

All appropriations lapse at year-end
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Audit Fund - Schedule ofReuenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Year Ettded April 30, 2018

Budget

Actual

AmountsOriginal Final
Revenues

Property taxes

Total Revenues

$ 18,300 $

18,300

18,300 $

18,300

18,299

18,299

Expenditures

Auditing expense and fee 20,000 20,000 16,700

1,599Net Change in Fund Balance $ (1,700) $ (1,700)

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning

Total Fund Balance, Ending

8,515

$ 10,114



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Chlorination Fund - Schedule ofRwenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

Year Ettded April 30, 2018

Budget
Actual

AmountsOriginal Final
Revenues

Property taxes

Total Revenues

$ 19,000 $

19,000

19,000

19,000

$ 18,976

18,976

Expenditures

ChloHnation, disinfection and treatment 24,000 24,000 3,487

15,489Net Change in Fund Balance $ (5,000) $ (5,000)

Fund Balance

Fund balance. Beginning

Total Fund Balance, Ending

34,527

$ 50,016
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

IMRE Fund - Schedule ofReuenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balattce

Budget and Actual
Yettr Ended April 30, 2018

Budget

Actual

AmountsOriginal Final
Revenues

Property taxes

Total Revenues

$ 100,400

100,400

$ 100,400

100,400

$ 100,303

100,303

Expenditures

Pension contributions by employer 130,000 130,000 123,281

(22,978)Net Change in Fund Balance $ (29,600) $ (29,600)

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning

Total Fund Balance. Ending

150,327

$ 127,349
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Public Liabilitty Ittsurance Fund - Schedule ofReuenues, Expenditures Changes in Fund Balance

Btldget and Actual
Veal' Ended April 30, 2018

Budget

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Revenues

Property taxes $ 149,200

149,200

$ 149,200

149,200

$ 149,099

149,099Total Revenues

Expenditures
Workers compensation
Property
Vehides

General liability
Administration fee

21,000

43,000

15,000

70,000
800

21,000

43,000
15,000

70,000
800

18,576

36,671

11,077

25,278

91,602Total Expenditures 149,800 149,800

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (600) $ (600) $ 57,497

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning 113,132

$ 170,629Total Fund Balance, Ending
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Social Securitty Fund - Schedule ofReuenlles, Expenditures Changes it! Fund Balance

Budget and Actual

Year Ended April 30, 2018

Budget

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Revenues

Property taxes

Total Revenues

$ @,100 $

44,100

44,100

44,100

$ 44,052

44,052

Expenditures
Social security contributions 50,000

(5,900) $

50,000

(5,900) $

49,014

(4,962)Net Change in Fund Balance $

Fund Balance

Fund balance, Beginning

Total Fund Balance, Ending

35,924

$ 30,962
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

Proprietary Fund Txypes - Schedule ofExpenditures

Budget and Actual
Year Ended Apt'i1 30, 2018

Budget
Actual

AmountsO rigina I Final
Personnel Services

District personnel salaries $ 580,000

580,000

$ 580,000

580,000

$ 472,835

472,835Total Personnel Services

Administrative Expenses

Telephone

Postage
Printing, publishing
Office supplies
Billing and collection expense
Professional services

Training, travel, and education

Computer hardware, software, and support
Community affairs
Medical and life insurance

3

20

2

8

80

5

5

20

2

195

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

3

20

2

8

80

5

5

20

l
195

000

000

500

000

000

000

000

500

000

000

2,958

18,669

2,373

6,213

13,338

1,611

220

19,466
709

182,400

TotaIAdministrative Expenses 340,000 340,000 247,957

Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Operating supplies

Maintenance and repair(plant)

Maintenance and repair (collection system)
Utilities and energy

Grounds upkeep
Gasoline/oil

Computer and support services

Emergency communications
Sludge management
Professional services

Residential reimbursement

Compliance requirements/permits
Contingency and miscellaneous expense
GIS

60,000

130,000

295,000

378,000

30,000

15,000

2,000

48,000

500,000

24,000

lO,ooo

28,000

3,000

lO,ooo
1,533,000

60,000

122,000

295,000

386,000

30,000

15,000

2,000

55,000

493,000

24,000

lO,ooo

28,000

3,000

lO,ooo

1,533,000

58

105

132

385

18

11

595

067

076

633

745

480

100

274

671

713

55

480

20

27,895

2,524

Total Operation and Maintenance of Plant 1,298,773
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

PropHetaty Fund Ttypes - Schedule of Expenditut'es

Budget and Actual
Year Ended Apl'it 30, 2018

Budget
Actual

AmountsOriginal Final

Capital Improvements
New construction

Plant equipment

Collection system
Vehicles

Legal expense

Engineering expense

Bond, Finance consulting expense

Total Capital Improvements

$ 3,000,000

30,000

280,000

50,000

5,000

375,000

I,ooo
3,741,000

$ 3,000,000

30,000

280,000

50,000

5,000

375,000

I,ooo
3,741,000

$ 55,844

11,041

298

125,276

192,459

Bond and Interest Account

2008 Debt Certificates, Principal
2008 Debt Certificates, Interest
Administration fee

2014 Debt Certificates, Principal
2014 Debt Certificates, Interest
Administration fee

Total Bond and Interest Account

100,000

60,000

3,500

100,000

118,000

3,500
385,000

105,000

57,000

1,500

100,000

118,000

3,500

385,000

53,737
750

112,838

1,100

168,425

Total Expenditures $ 6,579,000 $
6,579,000

$ 2,380,449
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LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT
ANNUAL TREASURER'S REPORT

Year Ended April 30, 2018

REVENUE SUMMARY
Sewer Services Collections 3,977,867 ; Property Taxes 603,603; Connection Fees 419,406; Interest
[ncome 36,080; Proceeds from Sa]e of Equipment 2,605; Safety Grant Proceeds 2,]44; Rep]acement
Taxes 1.56 1 .
I'OTAL REVENUES: $5,043,266.

COMPENSATION SUMMARY
Range Under $25,000: Cheryl A. Kehoe, Eric J. Hansen, Jacob R. Lowenheim, John P. Sullivan, Joshua T.
Dyra, Kyle Caccamo, Kyle D. Kane, Nancy A. Delaney, Renee J. Velasquez, Shelby Key, Terry L. Easier,
Trevor A. Martenson; Range $25,000 - $49,999: Jennifer L. Olson, Jessica L. Maioni, Karen L. Thompson;
Range $50,000- $74,999: James F. Olvera, Jerilyn Stahlberg, Michael G. Nelson, Ross K. Nelson, Tamara
C. Mueller; Range $75,000 to $99,999: John E. Caccamo Jr; Range $100,000 to $124,999: Rick Foyer;
Range Over $ 125,000: None.
TOTAL COMPENSATION: $640,707.

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
AB Links LLC 3,650; Advantage Mechanical 8,015; Algonquin Bank & Trust 16,713; AMS
Mechanical Systems 17,863; Angel Glink (et a1.) 42,913; AT&T 44,371; Bank ofNew York Mellon
162,338; Bearing Distributors Inc 3:3t9; Benchmark Sales & Service Inc 49,130; Bond Trust Services
Corporation 215,338; Cintas Corporation 1 1,291; Civic Systems LLC 6,614; Comcast Cable 4,259;
ComEd 11,252; Conrad De Labour & Associates Inc. 6,431 Constellation NewEnergy Inc 60,262;
Controls Consulting Inc 102,131; DN Tanks Inc 32,140; Dynegy Energy Services 312,889; EJ
Equipment 8,210; Flood Brothers Disposal & Recycling 3,439; Fox River Study Group 8,250;
Hadronex Inc 3,558; Hawkins Inc 23,832; Humana 180,836; 11lini Power Products Corp 15,658;
Illinois EPA 17,500; Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 123,281; Illinois Public Risk Fund 18,576;
Illinois State Treasurer's Office 2,525 Interstate Gas Supply Inc lO, 181; James Gioia & Company PC
16,700; Jones Insurance Services 76,706; Lakeside Equipment Corporation 20,098; Logsdon OfHce
Supply 6,876; Mac Painting 2,700; Marc Krcsmery Construction LLC 69,934; Michael Kruse
16,492; Nucor Gas 5,500; Northern Tool & Equipment 3,769; O'Reilly Auto Parts 4,622; Parkson
Corporation 9,022; Payment Service Network 2 1 ,72 1 ; Peerless Enterprises Inc 23,895; PetroChoice
LLC 14,457; Pivotal Payments 3,582; Postl Yore and Associates Inc 485,799; Ray Chevrolet
29,790; RP Coatings Inc 31 1,000; Ryco Landscaping 12,200; Shaw Suburban Media 2,793; Storing
Ramello & Durkin 26,501; Suburban Laboratories Inc 3,930; Synagro WWT Inc 461,865;
Technology Masters Inc 13,395; Third Millennium Associates Inc 13,277; TruGreen 4,768; United
Laboratories 4,955; United States Postal Service 17,703; United States Treasury 49,014; USA Blue
Book 8,207; Verizon Wireless 3,691; Village of Lake in the Hills 5,624; Wilkens Anderson 3,912;
Ziegler's Ace Hardware 4,194; Zukowski Rogers Flood & McArdle 5,369. All other disbursements in
amounts less than $2,500 76,079.
TOTAL VENDORS: $3,366,905.



SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CONDITION

IExcerpt from Comptroller Report AFR)

DISCRETEL\'
PRESENTED

COAL PONENT

FIDUCIARY UNITSGENERAL

277,054

SPECIAL
REVENUE

330,729

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

DEBT
SER\RICE

INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE

Revenues

(cline 240)

3,9 1 1,673

Expenditures

(cline 270)

253,628

23,426

284,084

46,645

4,025,960

(1 14,287)Excess of
Revenues Over

(Under)
Expenditures

('kline 301)

Transfers in

(cline 302)

Transfers Out

(cline 303)

Bond Proceeds

(cline 304)

Other

(cline 305)

Net Increase
(Decrease) in
Fund Balance

(cline 306)

23,426 46,645 (1 14,287)

Previous Year

Fund Balance

(cline 307)

865,463 342,425 45,063,422

Other
(cline 308)

403,800

45,352,935Current X'ear

Ending Fund
Balance

(cline 3 10)

888,889 389,070

TOTAL DEBT OUTSTANDING
BEGINNING
OF \'EAR

ISSUED
CURRENT

FISCAL \'EAR

R ETIRED
CURRENT

FISCAL YEAR

OUTSTANDING
END

OF YEAR

4,675,000 205,000 4,470,000

(cline 405) (cline 41 1) (cline 417) (cline 423)

Subscribed and sworn to this 1 3th day of September, 2018
Rick E. comer, District Manager

1, Karen L. Thompson, Clerk of Lake in The Frills Sanitary District, NlcHenry County, Illinois, do hereby certi®
that the above is a true copy of the Annual Treasurer's Report for the fiscal year ended April 30, 20 1 8

Karen L. Thompson, Clerk

+NOTE Refers to the Line Numbers in the Comptrollers Annual Financial Report(AFR)

2



LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT
515 PLUM STREET

LAKE IN THE HILLS. ILLINOIS 60156
847.658.5122 fax 847.658.4523

emo
To: Pnsident Eric Hansen and Board of Trustees

From: Rick Fomer, District Manager

Date: August 21, 2018

Cc: James Olvera File

RE: Operator's Certification

It's my pleasure to announce that James Olvem has passed his Class I Operators

Certification through the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. This is the highest

certification for wastewater operators in the state of Illinois.

Per the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District's Personnel Policies and Procedures Handbook,

an employee's salary shall be incnased $100 per month, 30 days after the District

receives fonnal notification that a Class IOperator's Certification has been issued.

Thenfon it is my recommendation that James Olvera's salary be adjusted elective

September 1 6, 2018 to $27.83 per hour, which equals to a $100 per month increase



SYNAGR©
Change Order #6 to Agreement

"Sludge Management Project"
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District

Lake in the Hills, IL

For

On November13th, 2008 the Change Order #5 wasimplementedfor the Sludge
M a nag e me nt P roject (the Contract) was entered into between Synagro Central LLC
(Synagro) and the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District (the Customer)

WHEREAS, Synagro and the Customer desire to add a Change Order #6 to the Contract
for good and valuable consideration while working together on a new contract, the receipt of
which is hereby acknowledged and parties hereby agree to amend the contract as follows:

1. The term of the contract shall be renewed for a period of one (1) month commencing on
October 1 , 2018 with automatic monthly renewals until a 30 day notice is given by either party
The contract shall remain in effect in full force in accordance with all of the original terms
and conditions.

2. Current Rate

$0.046 per gallon- Dewatering & Utilization of Class B Solids

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment #6 to be executed
by their duly authorized officers or representatives on

Synagro Central, LLC Lake in the Hills Sanitary District

By:.
Signature

By;.
Signature

Print Name Print Name

Title

Date

Title

Date

435 Williams Court. Suite 100, Baltimore. MD 21220 Phone (443) 489-9000 . Fax: (443) 489-9042



iPostl:More Engineering Architecture Management Services

September 5, 2018

Mr. Rick corner
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
515 Plum Street
Lake in the Hills, Illinois 60156

RE= 2017 Reconfiguration of Existing Hoffman Air Blowers
Recommendation for Payment -- Application #3
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District

Dear Mr. Fomer

Enclosed is Pay Application #3 Pay Request for work completed by Energenecs, Inc.
on the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District 2017 Reconfiguration of Existing Hoffman
Air Blowers project. This pa9 application reflects work completed through August 3 1,
2018

We have reviewed the request for payment and find the request and supporting
documentation in order. We recommend payment in the amount of ONE HUNDRED
THIRTY THOUSAND FORTY TWO DOLLARS AND THIRTY FINKE CENTS
($130,042.35) to Encrgenecs, Inc., 700 East Milan Drive, Saukville, Wisconsin 53050
upon receipt of unconditional waivers of liens from the contractor and sub-contractors.

Please find enclosed one (1) original copy of the Application for Payment and
supporting documents. Please contact me with any comments oi questions.

Sincerely,
Postl-Yore and Associates, Inc

, P.E., PMP
President

Enclosures

Posts-Yore and Associates, Inc.. 1875 Rohlwing Road, Suite B. Rolling Meadows, IL 60008. Phone: 847-640-1010. Fax: 847-640-1079
info@postl-yore.com ' www.posts-yore.com
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®
STATE OF ILLINOIS

WAI VEIL oF EllEN I'o DA'l'E
GW #

Escrow #CHUN TY OF McHenr

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:
WI IEREAS the undersigned has been employed by . Eng!:gg!!Sf$. !nQ:
to furnish Rcconfluulittion of Existing Hoffmitn .Air [31owers
6oi the premises kllown a$ Main Plant. 5 1 5 Plum StE'eet. Lake in the ni!!$JJ
ofwllich Lake in the Hills Sailitarv District is the owner
THE undersigned, for and in consideration of One I lundted Forty:l;our Thousttn dfpLli.:} lundN&Ni11cty )i dollars nnd 50/1 00
($ ) Dollars, and other good and valuable considerations, the receipt wt)ezeof is hereby acknowledged,
do(es) hereby waive and release any and all lien or claim of; or right to, lien, under the statutes of the State of Illinois, relating to
mechanics' liens, with respect to and on said above-described ptemiscs, and the impiovelnents thcrcon, and on the material, fixtures,
apparatus or macll ineiy Humislled, and on the moneys, funds OI ' otller considerations dale or to become due fi'om the owner, on account
of all labor, services, material, fixtures, apparatus or imachinci , furnished to this date by the undersigned for the above-described
premises, INCLUDING EXTRAS.+
DATE 7/20/} 8 COFaPANy NAME E11erzensg$.!!u

ADDRESS 20Q.EasLMi]Bn.D! &Q, Saukyj]]Q .]VL53.D8Q
SIGNATURE AND TITLE

'tEXTRAS INCLUDE 13UT ARE NOT LIMITED TO CFIANGE ORDEfiS, BOTH-l ORAL AND WRITTEN, TO TILE CONTRACT

STATE OF ILLINOIS
CQNTRAC:EQR:£AllFll)AVI [

COUNTY OF Mc} Jerry

TO WHON4 IT MAY CONCERNS

THE UNDERSIGNED, (NAME) Jglgg rQjdQ{
AND SAYS THAT HE OR SHE IS (POS]T]ON\ President
OF (COMPANY NAMED Energenecs. Ing
CONTRACTOR FURNISHING Reconlluumtioi3 af l:xistinu I coffman Air Blowers
LOCATED AT Mi[in Plan!, 5 1 5 Pltin] StCQct, Lake in the l-Jilin, ll
OWNEO By !:a]£e.in 11] ]jiJl£Sa !a! ! !2i$!!.i££

Tllat the total amount of the contract including exti'as+ is f...£S2:gQQ:Qa w)lick he or she has received payment of
$ 222,2Z&:Q6 prion to this payment. That all waivers are true, correct and genuine and delivered unconditionally
and that there is no claim either legal or equitable to de£e3t the validity of said waivers. That the following are the names arid
addresses of all parties who have furflished material oi labor, OI ' both, Hoi said work and alipatlies having contracts or sub contracts
Hor specific portions ofsaid work or hor material entering into the construction thereof and the amount due or to become due to eacl},
and t[lat the items mentioned inc]tlde a]] gabor and inateria] required to complete said work according to plans and spec]Hcations:

BEING DULY SWORN, DEPOSED

WHO ]S THE
WORK ON THE BUILDING

RABIES AND ADDE{ESSES WJ tAT Foia CON 'l'FACT PRICE
INCLDG EXTRAS'

AMOUNT
PAID

244:0Q
978.0

Tills
PAYMENT

0

BALANCE
DUE

850P ro M name

S 'e

R

'0 r
S

TOTAL, LABOR ANI) MATERIAL NCLUDING EXTRAS+ TO COMPLETE

l

.0

610.00
2

00
g.366.00

144.4

That ttlere aie no other contracts 6oi- said work outstaildlng, and that there is
labor or other work of any kind done or to be done upon OI in conilecrion

due or to becotne due to any person far material
work other ' than above stated.

DATE 8/20/1 8 SIGNATUR E

SUBSCRIBED AND SWOliN 'l'O BEFORE ME TIllS

lNO'PART PUBLIC
l:XTRAS INCLU DE J3UT Arie NOT I,IMITllD TO CJ-LANGE

ORDERS. ROTFL ORAL AND WRll''l'EN. 'rO 'l'llE CORI'liam'l '
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.iPostl=Hore Engineering Arctlitecture Managemerlt Services

September 5. 2018

Mr. flick Former

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
5 1 5 Plum Street
Lake in the Hills, illinois 60102

RE= Aerobic Digester #4
Recommendation for Paynxent - Application #2
Lake in the Hills Sanity District

Deal ' b4 r. Famer

Enclosed is Pay Application #2 for work completed by AMS Mechanical Systems,
INC on the Lake in the I fills Sanitary District AcFoLlic Digester #4 Piqject. This pay
application tellects work completed through August 3 1. 20 1 8.

\Ve fii d G pay request und supporting doctmlcilts to he in order, and recommend
payment in tile niilount of FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY SIX THOUSAND ETGF{T
[lUNDRED SIXTY N INE DOLLARS AND SIXTY CENTS ($556,869.60) to AMS
Mechanical Systems, Inc., 9341 Adam Don Pzukway, Woodridge. IT. 60517, u})on
tecelpt of non-conditional partial waivers of lien.

Please finn enclosed one (1) original copy of the Application fot ' Payment and
suppai'ring documents. Please contact me with itsy comments {]] questions,

Sincerely.
Postl-Yoic and Associates, Inc

President

Enclosures

Posts-Yore and Associates. }nc 187$ Rohlwing Read. Suite B . Railing Meadows. IL 60008 . Phone: 847-840-101 a Fax: a47-&40-tora
Info©pa311-yore.com ' www.posit-yore.com
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.Jeiib:" App/led Eng:chnologies
Applied Technologies. Inc

468 Park Avenue

Lake Villa. Illinois 60046

Fax 847-265-7327

Telephone 847-265-7325

www.ati-ae.com

September 1 0, 2018 Clear

Mr. Rick Fomer, District Manager
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
5 15 Plum Street
Lake in the Hills, IL 60156

Subject: Letter of Engagement for Professional Services
District Engineer

Dear Rick

Applied Technologies, Inc. (ATI) is pleased to submit this Letter of Engagement for Professional
Services to serve as District Engineer for the Lake in the Hills Sanitary District (District). ATT
will provide study, design, construction, and general consulting engineering services for projects
conceming infrastructure owned by the District.

As District Engineer, Peter Kolb, P.E. will coordinate District activities at the direction of the
District Manager and Board of Trustees. This is an ongoing position that may be extended on an
annual basis. The DE shall act as the District's technical advisor and offer advice as requested by
the District Manager and/or the Board of Trustees.

BACKGROUND

The District was formed in 1963 under the Sanitary
District Act of 1 917. Today it is govemed by a three
member Board of Trustees and serves approximately
1 1 ,000 accounts located in the Village of Lake in the
Hills and portions of the City of Crystal Lake and the
Village of Huntley. The District owns, maintains,
and operates 125 miles of collection system sewers,
six lift stations and a 4.5 MGD wastewater treatment

facility.

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement LitH 20 1 8-09-10.docx



'9; Mr. Rick Fomer

September 10, 2018
Page 2 of 4

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Services will be provided under two general categories: General District Engineer Services and
Task Order Services. These categories are detailed in the following sections.

General District Engineer Services

The scope of work for General District Engineer Services includes, but is not limited to, the
following items and shall be provided on an hourly basis. (See Appendix A for the Standard Rate
Schedule.)

1 . Services requested by the Board of Trustees.

2. Preliminary investigations, cost studies, feasibility studies, economic analyses, and
forecasts.

3. Attendance and preparation for all requested Board of Trustees meetings. Prepare
monthly status reports for Capital Improvement Projects when appropriate.

4. Site visits necessary for operation of the facilities.

5

6

7.

8.

Special planning, engineering studies, appraisals, and utility rate analyses

Financial/budgetary planning

Technical advice as requested by the District Manager and Board of Trustees

Technical representation of the District at meetings or conferences with regulatory,
municipal, county, and state agencies, as needed or requested.

Task Order Sewices

Task Order Services will be provided on a project-by-project basis as requested by the District.
The tasks will be detailed in a Project Task Order, a sample of which is included in Appendix B.
Each Task Order Service will have a deHlned scope, schedule, and not-to-exceed budget amount
authorized by the District. These services include, but are not limited to, the following:

1 . Surveying and mapping

2 Construction plans, specifications and contract documents, and all permit submittals

3. Onsite management, construction related services, and inspection of capital
improvement projects.

4 Monthly status reports on project activities

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSALUetter of Engagement Lite 20 1 8-09-10.docx



Mr. Rick Famer
September 10, 2018
Page 3 of 4

ENGINEERING BUDGET AND INVOICING

Engineering services will be billed monthly on an hourly basis for actual services provided under
the General District Engineer Services category. Task Order Services will be billed on an hourly
basis for actual services provided and will not exceed the task's budget amount without written
authorization by the District. Our level of effort can be modified as necessary to meet any
contractual or budgetary requirements of the District. Appendix C contains a sample invoice, and
Appendix D features ATI's General Contract Provisions.

INSURANCE

A Certificate of Insurance will be provided to the District upon commencement of the services
ATI will maintain the following insurance coverage for the duration of this agreement:

Type

Professiona ILiability(Occu rrence/Aggregate)

CommerciaIGeneraILiability(Occurrence/Aggregate)

Automobile Liability (Combined Single Limit)

Um brella Lia bility(Occurrence/Aggregate)

Workers Com pensation and Employers' Liability

limit

$2,000,000/$3,000,000

$1,000,000/$2,000,000

$l,ooo,ooo

$5,000,000/$5,000,000

$l,ooo,ooo

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District will be named as additionally insured on all Certificates of
Insurance.

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement Lite 20 1 8-09-1 0.docx



Mr. Rick Fomer

September 10, 2018
Page 4 of 4

To accept this Letter of Engagement, please sign and date this page and retum a copy to us.
Please contact me directly at (847) 309-5402 with any questions. Thank you for the opportunity
to provide professional engineering services to Lake in the Hills Sanitary District; we look
forward to working with you on this exciting endeavors

Sincerely,
Applied Technologies, Inc

Peter E. Kolb, P.E
Vice President

Jim Smith, P.E., President ofApplied Technologies, Inc

Appendices
A. 201 8 Standard Rates

B. Sample Task Order Form

C. Sample Invoice

D. Applied Technologies, Inc. General Provisions

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
District Engineer

Accepted by

Owner:

By (Signed)

By (Print)

Title:

Date

M:\BD3686 LITE\WORDPROC\PROPOSAIALetter of Engagement LitH 20 1 8-09- 1 0.docx



App//edTechnologies
Engineers -Architects

APPENDIX A

2018 Standard Rate
Schedule

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement LitH 20 18-09-10.docx



.pglib= app/iecrjbchno ogies

2018 Standard Rate Schedule

Project Role
Hours\

Rate

Principal/District Engineer

Senior Project Manager

Project Manager

Senior Project Engineer V

Senior Prcject Engineer IV/Land Surveyor

Senior Project Engineer lll/Assistant District Engineer

Project Engineer ll

Project Engineer I

Senior Architect

Architect

Senior Designer IV

Senior Designer lll

Designer ll

Designer I

Clerical

$190

$170

$160

$156

$138

$130

$120

$103

$130

$110

Other Terms and Conditions

1 . This standard rate schedule is adjusted on January 1 st of each year.

2. Rates include expenses, such as mileage, photocopying, blueprints, and postage

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSAIALetter of Engagement Lite 20 1 8-09- 10.docx



4pp/fedTechnologies
Engineers -Architects

APPENDIX B

Sample
Task Order Form

M.:\BD3686 LITE\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement LitH 20 1 8-09-10.docx



.J#97:' App/ied'technologies Applied Technologies, Inc

468 Park Avenue

Lake Villa, Illinois 60046

Fax 847-265-7327

Telephone 847-265-7325

www.ati-ae.com

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
TASK ORDER NO.

Date: Project No.

Project Name:

ATI Point(s) of Contact:

UTHSD Project Manager

Project Description

Scope of Sewlces/Schedule

Compensation

PROJECTAPPROVAL

Applied Technologies, Inc. Accepted by Lake in the Hills Sanitary District

Signature:

Printed Name

Signature:

Printed Name

Title:

Date

Title:

Date



.JliiliP ' App/fedTechnologies

APPENDIX C

Sample Invoice

M:\BD3686 LITH\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement LitH 20 1 8-09- 1 0.docx



.2iibi= app/iecrtl:chnoiogies 468 Park Avenue
Lake Villa, Illinois 60046

SAMPLE INVOICE

District Engineer: Peter Kolb

Rick Forner, District Manager
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District.
51 5 Plum Street
Lake in the Hills, Illinois 60156

DATE

Project No
Invoice No:

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District Task No

Project ####

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
Professional Services from August 26

Professional Personnel Summary

Lake in the Hills Sanitary District Sample Invoice

2018 to September 25. 2018

District Engineer
Kolb. Peter

Senior Project Engineer V
Last, First

Project Engineer I
Last, First

Totals

Noun Rate Amount

3.50

lO.oo

5.00
18.50

190.00

156.00

103.00

570.00

1 .560.00

515.00

2,645.00
Total Labor

Rate
2,645.00

Total this Invoice.
Outstanding Invoices

Number Date Balance

Total

Billings to Date

Current
2.645.00

Prior
0.00

Total
2.645.00

Received
0.00

A/R Balance
2,645.00

Budget
$+H .:tF## . +H

Terms: Net 10 Days



.J'g!>:'' App/fed Engchno ogies

APPENDIX D

General Contract
Provisions

M:\BD3686 LITE\WORDPROC\PROPOSAL\Letter of Engagement LitH 20 1 8-09- 1 0.docx



APPENDIX D GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Scope of Sewices and Time Limit
The Proposal or Agreement for Professional SerHces, hereinaRer both called the
Agreement, is valid for a period of 60 days. Signing of the Agreement by the Client
shall be considered as authorization for Applied Technologies, Inc.(ATI) to proceed
with the Scope of Services. If acceptance is not received within 60 days, ATI reserves
the right to revise the Scope of Services, Compensation, schedule, and personnel
commitments.

the project. Client agrees to indemni& ATI from any claims, damages, losses, and
costs, including, but not limited to, attomey's fees and litigation costs, arising out of
claims by third parties for property damage and bodily injury, including death, caused
solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of Client, Client's employees, or agents
in connection with the project.

If the negligence or willful misconduct of both ATI and Client(or a person identified
above for whom each is liable) is a cause of such damage or injury, the loss, cost, or
expense shall be shared between ATI and Client in proportion to their relative degrees
of negligence or willful misconduct and the right of indemnity shall apply fnr such
proportion.

2. Compensation
Compensation for the Scope of Services shall be as indicated in the Agreement,
including any mte schedule or other attachments. All time spent on the Project by
professional, technical, and c]erica] personne] wi]] be invoiced. Unless otherwise stated,
any compensation or fee estimate is considered a budget estimate only, and is not a
lump-sum fee. If it becomes apparent to ATI that the total amount of compensation will
exceed the budget estimate, ATI will nobly the Client. Promptly thereafter, the Client
and ATI shall review the matter of compensation and either the budget estimate or the
remaining Scope of Services sha]] be revised. Rate schedules are adjusted on January
I st of each calendar year.

10. Limitation of Liability
The Client agrees to limit any and all liabil ity or claim for damages, cost of defense, or
expenses levied against ATJ to a sum not to exceed$50,000 or the amount of total
compensation under this Agreement, whichever is less, on account of any design
defect, error, omission, or professional negligence.

3. Additional Sewices

Additional compensation shall be negotiated between the Client and ATI for Additional
Services beyond the Scope of Services. Unless otherwise noted, these Additional
Services will include, but not be limited to: investigating the condition of existing
facilities; verifying the accuracy of drawings or information fumished by the Client;
surveying and preparation of easements and right-of-way descriptions, redesign acer
approval of preliminary phase documents; preparation of altemative designs; bid
protests; redesign and rebidding; Client-requested change orders involving redesign;
restaking of construction stakes; and delays beyond the control of ATI.

11. Reuse of Documents

Any reuse of documents including reports, drawings, specifications, Contract
Documents and other deliverables fumished by ATI, whether in hard copy or
electronic form, under this Agreement without specific written verification or adoption
by ATI will be at the Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to ATI.
Any such reuse, verification or adoption will entitle ATI to further compensation at
rates agreed upon by the Client and ATI

12. Termination

Either the Client or ATI may terminate the Agreement by giving 30 days xwitten
notice to the other party- in such an event, the Client shall pay ATI in full for all work
previously authorized and perfomled prior to the elective date of temtination. All
relationships and obligations created by this Agreement shall be terminated upon
completion of all applicable requirements of this Agreement.

4. Payments to ATI
Progress invoices will be issued monthly by ATI for all services performed under the
Agreement. Invoices are due and payable on receipt. Interest at the rate of 1% per
month will be charged on all past due amounts.

5. Professional Standards
ATI shall be responsible, to the level of competency presently maintained by other
practicing professionals in the same type of work and time in the Clients community,
for the professional and technical soundness, accuracy, and adequacy of all design,
drawings, specifications, and other work and materials fumished under this Agreement.
Prof'msional services are not subject to, and ATI can not provide, any wananty or
guarantee, express or implied, including warranties or guarantees contained in any
uniform commercial code. Any such warranties or guarantees contained in any purchase
orders, requisitions or notices to proceed issued by the Client are specifically objected
to

13. Dispute Resolution
In the event of a dispute arising under this Agreement, the Client and ATI shall
attempt to settle the dispute by discussion between the Client's and ATI's
management. If any dispute cannot be resolved in this manner, in a reasonable length
of time, the Client and ATI agree to attempt non-binding mediation or other altemative
dispute resolution prior to filing any legal proceedings. In the event actions are
brought to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect its
litigation costs flom the other party.

14. Controlling Law and Severabilily
This Agreement is to be govemed by the law of the principal place of business of ATI
If any provisions, paragraph, word, section, or subsection of this Agreement is
invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions,
paragraphs, words, sections, and subsections shall not be affected and shall continue in
full force and eject.

6. Opinions of Cost
Since ATI has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services
fumished by others, or over the ContractoKsy methods of detemiining prices, or over
competitive bidding or market conditions, the opinions of probable Total Project Costs
and Construction Cost are made on the basis of ATI's experience and qualifications and
represent ATI's professional judgment. ATI does not guarantee that proposals, bids or
actual Total Project Costs or Construction Costs will not vary from the opinions of
probable cost prepared by ATI. If prior to bidding, the Client wishes greater assurance
as to Total Project or Construction Costs, the Client shall employ an independent cost
estimator. ATI's services to modify the Contract Documents to bring the Construction
Cost within any limitation established by Client will be considered Additional Services.

15. Entire Agreement
This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Client and A'll. No other
terms, conditions, promises, understandings, statements, or representations, express or
implied, covered in the subject matter of this Agreement exist or have been made. This
Agreement cancels and supersedes all previous agreements, proposals and understandings, if
any, written or oral, behveen the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

7. Construction Observation

During construction observation ATI shall not supervise, direct, or have control over the
Contractor's work or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction, nor for construction safety precautions and programs. ATI
shall not be responsible for any failure of the Contractor to comply with applicable
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, or codes. ATI can neither guarantee the
performance of the construction contract by the Contractor nor assume responsibility fnr
the Contractor's failure to fumish and perform work in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

16. Joint Purchasing
The purchase of goods and services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall also be
offered for purchases to be made by other govemmental units, as authorized by the
Govemmental Joint Purchasing Act, 30 ILCS 525/0-01, et seq.(the "Act"). Ajl purchases
and payments made under the Act shall be made directly by and between each governmental
unit and the successful Bidder. Applied Technologies, Inc. agrees that Lake County shall not
be responsible in any way for purchase orders or payments made by the other govemmental
units. Applied Technologies, Inc. further agrees that all temps and conditions of this
Agreement shall continue in full Sarge and erect as to the other govemmental units during
extended temps. The credit or liability of each govemmental unit shall remain separate and
distinct. Disputes between Applied Technologies, Inc. and governmental units shall be
resolved between the immediate parties.8. Insurance

ATI shall procure and maintain insurance for protection flom claims under workers'
compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including personal
injury, sickness or disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other
than such employees, and flom claims or damages because of injury to or
destruction of property including loss of use.

Applied Technologies, Inc. and the other govemmental units may negotiate such other and
further terms and conditions to this Agreement("Other Terms') as individual projects may
require. To be elective, Other Terms shall be reduced to writing and signed by a duly
authorized representative of both Applied Technologies, Inc. and the other governmental
unit.Applied Technologies, Inc. shall provide the other govemmental units with all required
documentation set forth in the Agreement including but not limited to: performance and
payment bonds, Certificates of Insurance naming the respective govemmental unit as an
additional insured and certified payrolls to the other governmental unit as required.

9. Indemnification

ATI agrees to indemni8 Client aom any claims, damages, losses, and costs,
including, but not limited to, attomey's fees and litigation costs, ahsing out of
claims by third parties fbr property damage and bodily injury, including death,
caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of ATI in connection with







LAKE IN THE HILLS SANITARY DISTRICT

MONTHLY TREASURER REPORT - O&M/SEWERAGE FUNDS

Month of August. 2018

Beginning Cash and Investments
First National Bank - O & M Account
First National Bank - Certificate Fund

First National Bank Depreciation Account
First National Bank - Surplus Funds
First National Bank - Bond & Interest Fund

First National Bank Sinking Funds
Algonquin Bank & Trust - Cash Mgr
Algonquin Bank & Trust Operating
Home State Bank

Illinois State Bank

Credit Cards

MONTH YTD BUDGET

O&M
Bond & Int

Construction
Construction
Bond & Int
Bond & Int
O&M
O&M
O&M
O&M

547,208.94
68,452.50

1 ,953,263.57

54 ,715 .04
602.745.33

577,718.51
2 ,617,875.55

1 ,753.00
50,122.39

30.182.23

(396.15)

559.902.23

29,423.42

1 ,900,909.65

14,532.59

527,845.89

533,136.32
3,007,896.46

2 .164 .00
46.412.23
28,820.69

(918.59)

TOTAL BEGINNING CASH AND INVESTMENTS
SEWERAGE FUNDS

6.503.640.91 6,650,124.89

Revenues and Receipts
Sewer Bill Income/User Charges
Septage Income
Wastewater Discharge Income
Refunds
Connections'ap-On Fees
Annexation Fees (inc. GIS)

Downstream & Misc Charges
Liftstation Recapture
Gain/Loss - Sale of Equipment
Interest Income

90.786.42

17,935.68

3.768.32

(410 .15)

1 ,007.719.10

71 ,306.62
14,352.63

(4.977.46)

41 ,600.00

3,600,000.00
200,000.00

45,000.00

125,000.00

5.000.00

500.00

5,846.34

1 17.926.61

22 ,017. 84

1 ,152,018.73

lo.ooo.oo

3.985.500.00TOTAL REVENUES AND RECEIPTS

Expenditures
PERSONNEL SERVICES

District Personnel Salaries 46.812.81 181 .220.63 580.000.00

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Telephone
Postage
Printing and Publications
Office Supplies
Collection and Billing Expenses
Professional Services
Training, Travel and Education
Computer Hardware, Software. and Support

Community Affairs
Medical and Life Insurance

473.41

532.53
1 ,179.04
5,1 18.46

60.19

895.23

25,038.00

329.59
210.00

6,425.75

62.18

69.874.99

109,1 93.43

3

21

2

8

80

20
5

24

2

210

376

500

000

200

500
000

000
000

000
000

000

200

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

00
00

86.23

8,164.50
83.66

857.30

18,757.90

28,955.53

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Operating Supplies

Maintenance and Repair(Plant)
Maintenance and Repair (Collection Systems)

Utilities and Energy

Grounds Upkeep
Gasoline/Oil

Computer and Support Services
Emergency Communications

6,253.36

5.010.87

24,513.19
46.663.88

83,91 1 .00
127,983.35

6,667.72
6*058.66

60,000.00
150,000.00

310,000.00
390,000.00

30,000.00

15.000.00

2.000.00

54.000.00

30.873.77

1 ,575.85
2,027.01

4.695.17 1 8 . 749 .04



Sludge Management
Professional Services
Residential Reimbursement

Compliance Requirements/Permits
GIS

8,202.55

140,027.77

14,810.60

3.200.00

20,000.00

2,495.00

495,080.21

500.000.00
24,000.00

lO,ooo.oo
28,500.00

lo,ooo.oo
1 .583.500.00

2,500.00

61 .1 38.58

Expenditures (continued)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
New Construction

Plant Equipment

Collection System
Vehicles

Legal Expense
Engineering Expense

Bond, Finance Consulting Expense

48.633.75

3.655.00

558.806.90

3,655.00

3,000,000.00

30,000.00

370,000.00

130.000.00

5,000.00

375,000.00

I ,ooo.oo
3.91 1 .000.00

6 ,010.00

58,298.75

24.687.00

587,148.90

BOND TRANSFERS

2008 Debt Certificates, Principal
2008 Debt Certificates, Interest
Administration Fees - 2008 Debt Certs

105,000.00

53.000.00

3,500.00

161 .500.00

Series 2014 Bond, Principal
Series 2014 Bond, Interest

Administration Fees - 2014 Series Bond

1 05,000.00

1 14,000.00

3,500.00

222.500.00

CONTINGENT AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

Not Otherwise Appropriated 3,000.00

3,000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 195.205.67 1 .372.643.17 6,837.700.00

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (77,279.06)(220,624.44)$(2,852.200.00)

Ending Cash and Investments
First National Bank O & M Account

First National Bank - Certificate Fund

First National Bank - Depreciation Account
First National Bank - Surplus Funds

First National Bank - Bond & Interest Fund

First National Bank - Sinking Fund
Algonquin Bank & Trust - Cash Mgr.
Algonquin Bank & Trust - Operating
Home State Bank Now Account
Illinois State Bank

Credit Cards

O&M

Bond & Int
Construction
Construction
Bond & Int

Bond & Int
O&M
O&M
O&M
O&M
O&M

383,068.85

81 ,476.47
1 ,962,143.61

57.337.24

668,678.60
592,586.80

2,607,156.43
86.00

50,599.72
30,350.67

(1 ,1 13.65)

336,857.40

42.430.29

1 ,930,087.43

23.567.65

593,893.57

547,995.04

2,995,032.03
14.00

46,651 .01
28.902.34

(650.92)

TOTAL ENDING CASH AND INVESTMENTS 6.432.370.74 6.544.779.84

SEWERAGE FUNDS



LITH SANITARY DISTRICT
Bills Paid Before Meeting

September 13, 2018 Meeting Date
Name Memo Amount

General Fund

TOTAL GEN FUND BILLS PAID BEFORE MEETING
$

$

$

$

$

O & M Fund
Alarm Detection Systems

Ansercal1 24

AT&T

AT&T

Comcast

Flood Brothers Disposal

Harvard Harmony

Illinois EPA

Verizon Wireless

Emerg Comm - QU Bill. Sept thru Nov

Emerg Comm

Emerg Comm

Emerg Comm

Computer Support & Telephone

Building & Grounds - August 201 8

Building & Grounds Upkeep - Mums

Permits (for land application of sludge)

Emerg Comm

90.00

100.00

360.15

187.84

363.07

318.00

120.00

2,500.00

307.30
$

TOTAL O & M BILLS PAID BEFORE MEETING $ 4,346.36

LITH SANITARY DISTRICT
Recurring Bills

September 13, 2018 Meeting Date

Name Memo Amount

General Fund

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

United States Treasury

Employer Portion of IMRF - August 201 8

District Pd Payroll Taxes (SS & Med)

$

$

1 1 .953.53

4.650.41

TOTAL GENERAL FUND RECURRING BILLS

O & M Fund
Humana

Payment Services Network

United States Postal Svs - CAPS Account

Health Insurance Premiums

Collections Expenses from July 201 8

Postage - Past Due Notices

TOTAL O & M RECURRING BILLS

Approved

President Hansen

$   1 6.603.94

     
$   1 9.079.01

$   5,1 54.47

$   532.53

$   24,766.01



LITH SANITARY DISTRICT - Governmental Fund
Bills Presented to Board for Approval

September 13, 2018

Name Memo Amount

GENERAL CORP FUND BILLS

Dell Marketing L.P.

First National Bank of Omaha - Visa

First National Bank of Omaha - Visa

George Roach & Associates

Illinois Public Risk Fund

Interstate Gas Supply

Jones Insurance Services

McHenry County Recorder

Nucor Gas

Storino Ramello & Durkin

Technology Masters, Inc.

TruGreen

TruGreen

Computer Hardware

Computer Support

Comm Affairs

Audit FYE 4/30/1 8

Insurance - Workers Comp

Utilities - Nat Gas. July 2018

NOA - Chg to Trustee Bonds to Add New Trustee

Computer Software - Laredo 4th QU

Utilities - Nat Gas

Legal Svs - July 2018

Computer Support

Building & Grounds - Lawn Svs

Building & Grounds - Insect & Disease Control

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

3,128.41

99.95

20.33

lO.ooo.oo

4.199.00

3.1 1

150.00

275.00

214.61

3.132.50

62.50

801 .55

459.20

TOTAL GENERAL CORP FUND BILLS $ 22 ,546 .16

LITH SANITARY DISTRICT - O&M/Sewerage Fund
Bills Presented to Board for Approval

September 13, 2018

Name Memo Amount

O & M BILLS

Advance Electrical Supply Company LLC

Ansercal1 24 LLC

AT&T-Alarms

Calco, Ltd. Inc.

Cintas Corp

ComEd, Inc.

ComEd, Inc.

domed, Inc.

ComEd, Inc.

Controls Consulting

Controls Consulting

Dynegy Energy Services

Maint/Repair - Plant

Emerg Comm

Emerg Comm

Supplies - Lab

Supplies - Personnel

Utilities - Coll Sys Dam LS

Utilities - Coll Sys Beach LS

Utilities - Coll Sys Meadowbrook LS

Utilities - Coll Sys Meadowbrook LS

Engineering - SCADA

Engineering - Coll System

Utilities - Plant. Concord. Decatur &

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

20

100

619

133

148

395

93

335

308

570

260

566

27

00

18

00

38

39

08

33

13

00

00

08

3

l

(7/6-8/6)

(8/6-9/5)

3

l
27Pyott LS



EJ Equipment

Element Materials Tech Daleville LLC

First National Bank of Omaha - Visa

First National Bank of Omaha - Visa

FLSmidth USA Inc

Hach Company

Hach Company

Joseph D. Foreman & Company, Inc.

Joseph D. Foreman & Company, Inc.

Kaman Industrial Technologies

Kaman Industrial Technologies

Kaman IndustriaITechnologies

Logsdon Office Supply

Logsdon Office Supply

Logsdon Office Supply

Logsdon Office Supply

Logsdon Office Supply

Lou's Gloves Inc

M&A Precision Truck Repair

Mac Painting

McHenry County Recorder

McHenry County Recorder

Mcmaster-Carr

PetroChoice LLC

PetroChoice LLC

Phenova Inc

Postl-Yore and Associates

Ralph Helm Inc.

Ryco Landscaping

Storino Ramello & Durkin

Storino Ramello & Durkin

Suburban Laboratories, Inc.

Synagro-WWT, Inc.

Synagro-WVVT, Inc.

Technology Masters Inc

Technology Masters Inc

The Home Depot

The UPS Store 2361

Third Millennium Associates

United Laboratories

USA BlueBook

USA BlueBook

Village of Huntley

Village of Lake in The Hills

Wa rehouse Direct

Water One, Inc.

Water One, Inc.

Whispering Hills

Whispering Hills

Maint/Repair - Vehicles. 'rV Truck

Pro Svs - Lab

Maint/Repair - Plant, Grounds Upkeep

Pro Svs - Intuit Payroll Fees

Maint/Repair - Plant. Grit Washer

Operating Supplies - Lab

Operating Supplies - Lab

Maint/Repair - Coll Sys

Maint/Repair - Plant, wash water

Maint/Repair - Plant. Filters

Maine/Repair - Plant. Filters

Maint/Repair - Plant, Filters

Office Supplies

Once Supplies

Office Supplies

CREDIT - Returned Office Supplies

Office Supplies

Supplies - Lab

Maint/Repair - Vehicles. Vactor Truck

Grounds Upkeep - Interior Office Painting

Collections - July 201 8

Collections - August 2018

Maint/Repair - Plant

Gas/Fuel

Gas/Fuel

Operating Supplies - Lab

Engineering - Phosphorus

Maint/Repair - Plant

Grounds Upkeep - August mowing

Collections - July 2018

Cap Impvmt Legal- Recovery of Earnest Money July 2018

Pro Svs - Lab

Sludge Mgt - July 2018

Sludge Mgt - August 2018

Computer Support - Maint

Computer Support - Setup New Computers

Maint/Repair - Plant

Postage

Collections - Past due bill rendering

Supplies - Maint

Maint/Repair - Coll Sys

Maint/Repair - Plant. Digester 91 0

Collections - Water Shut Off Fees from 8/2/1 8

Utilities - Water

Pro Svs

Supplies - Personnel, Equip Rental 9/1-1 1/30

Supplies - Personnel, Drinking Water

Grounds Upkeep - Mulch

Grounds Upkeep - Mulch

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

163.90

404.10

529.93

63.75

2.748.95

188.56

157.17

566.00

291 .00

80.00

241 .60

465.46

201 .02

275.71

557.38

(151.98)

102.24

186.00

333.78

3.650.00

43.00

47.00

51 .61

966.04

1 .026.12

183.40

1 .100.00

268.99

2.304.00

761 .25

5.456.05

132.00

23.792.49

30.822.53

607.50

795.00

519.97

9.93

756.18

453.78

391 .81

1 .216.59

100.00

146.61

38.19

22.50

70.00

106.50

71 .00



Ziegler's Ace Hardware Supplies - Maint $

$

276.31

TOTAL O&M FUND BILLS 122,139.76

CONSTRUCTION FUND BILLS

Controls Consulting

Controls Consulting

JCM Engineering & Associates Inc

Postl-Yore and Associates

Postl-Yore and Associates

Engineering - Air Supply

Engineering - Digester #4

Engineering - Air Supply

Engineering - Air Supply

Engineering - Digester #4

$

$

$

$

$

$

2.940.00

560.00

700.00

7.565.00

32.105.00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION FUND BILLS 43,870.00

BOND & INTEREST FUND BILLS

The Bank of New York Mellon Interest on 2018 Debt Certificates $ 25.996.89

TOTAL BOND & INTEREST FUND BILLS
$

25,996.89

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL BILLS PRESENTED FOR APPROVAL IS $ 260.269.12 OF WHICH £.39.1SQ:lg IS

FROM THE GENERAL CORPORATE FUND, £.!g].292:1g IS FROM THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

FUND, £43.gZQ:gg IS FROM THE CONSTRUCTION FUND, AND £.25,999:99 IS FROM THE BOND AND

INTEREST FUND.

Approved

President Hansen
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MANAGER'S REPORT
Month of August, 2018

TOTAL
for

YEAR

7
18
14

Customers:
Total accounts thru August 201 8:
New Customers:
Connections:
Permits Issued:
Permits Issued Past 13 Months:
Total Permits Issued to Date:

Residential:
Commercial:
Industrial:

CURRENT
1 1 .696

0
2

0
23

DATA for
August 2017

1 1 .682
l
4

2

14

lO.163
121

l

ILLINOIS E.P.A. SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION PER lITS ISSUED PAST 12 MONTHS

NAME PE DWELLINGS

None

COLLECTION SYSTEM EMERGENCY RESPONSES

DATE
8/1 1/1 8

LOCATION
14 Hunters Path

PROBLEM
Service Line/MH

DISTRICT
PROBLEM

Yes

COLLECTION SYSTEM ACTIVITIES

District personneltelevised 110 line segments of sanitary sewer totaling 17.120 if.
District personnel cleaned and root cut lO line segments of sanitary sewers totaling 2,445 if

FLOWS

Total Flow for Month:
Average Daily Flow:
Maximum Daily Flow:
Precipitation Total:
Historical Monthly Precipitation Avg
Septage Accepted:

88.856
2.868
3.603
3.50
4.80

366,306

million gallons
mgd
mgd (8/29)
inches
inches
gallons

Total Monthly Flows Monthly Average Daily Flows

130.0

120.0

I lO.o

100.0

90.0

80.0

Aug Sept Od Nov Dec Jan-18 Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan-18 Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug



MANAGER'S MONTHLY REPORT
August, 2018
Page 2

TREATMENT PLANT OPERATIONS:

Average in

166 mg/L

289 mg/L

19.9 mg/L

Average out

C.B.O.D: 166 mg/L 0.9 mg/L

Total Suspended Solids: 289 mg/L 3.1 mg/L

Ammonia Nitrogen: 19.9 mg/L 0.31 mg/L

Phosphorus: 0.70 mg/L

Fecal Conform: 72 colonies (daily max.)

This data represents the monthly averages taken from District records and not yet submitted to the Illinois E.P.A

Average
% reduction

99.5%

98.9%

98.4%

Effluent Monthly Average
CBOD

Effluent Monthly Average
Total Suspended Solids

12.0

I I .o
10.0

9.0

8.0

7.0

6.0

5.0

4.0

3.0

2.0

1 .0
0.0

Aug Sept Nov Dec Jan-18 Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec JaRp18 Feb Mar Ap{ May JI Jul Aug

Shaded = Filters By-Passed Either Fully or ParHaily.

PLANT OPERATIONS SUMMARY:

Wasted: 3.840 million gallons
Decanted: 0.000 million gallons
Thickened 4.265 million gallons
To Digester 0.696 million gallons
Pressed 0.656 million gallons

PERSONNEL ACTIVITIES

None

Respectfully subm

ManagerRick Fo
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iLLiNOiS ASSOCIATION OF WAFER POLLUTION CONTROL OPERATORS

P.O. BOX 59 RANTOUL, ILLINOIS 61866

CELL 81 5-303-3745 ' EMAIL exec@iawpco.org

Z

Mr. Rick Fomer, District Manager
Lake in the Hills Sanitary District
515 Plum Street
Lake in the Hills, IL 60156

Dear Mr. Fomer

We are pleased to announce that the Lake in the Hills Wastewater facility has been nominated for
an award for "Best Operated Wastewater Treatment Works": to be presented by the Illinois
Association of Water Pollution Control Operators (IAWPCO) during their annual conference on
February 1 1 - 13, 2019. This award is presented in each of five categories, with the categories
being separated according to facility size and treatment process type. Your facility has been
nominated in the Group 2 category. It was nominated for the award by the Illinois Environmental
Protection Agency's (IEPA) Division of Water Pollution Control, Field Operations Section.

The purpose of the annual awards is to emphasize the relationship between adequate wastewater
treatment and clean receiving waters and to give public recognition and encouragement to
communities, their ofHcials and the operating personnel who have operated their wastewater
facilities in an especially elective manner.

\

//

You should consider this quite an honor, as your facility was one of
all the Group 2 facilities considered statewide. The nominees 6or
Wastewater Treatment Works" are: '/ ''\ /

Lake in thellills Sanitary District
City ofRobinson WWTF P
City of Pittsfield WWTP
Stookey Township WWTP (
City ofMurphysboro WWTP

\ .r''"u
\

only five (5) nominated 6-om
the Group 2 "Best Operated

Inspection teams made up of IAWPCO representatives will choose the winner. A member of an
inspection team either has or will be contacting you in the near future to make arrangements for
visiting your facility.

"LET US MAKE IT PERFECTLY CLEAR"
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ILLINOIS ASSOCIATION OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL OPERATORS

P.O. BOX 59 RANTOUL, ILLINOIS 61866

CELL 815-303-3745 EMAIL exec@lawpco org

Lake in the Hills SD
Page 2

Registration materials for the IWPC conference will be mailed in early December. Should you fail
to receive the registration materials, please contact:

David L. Miller
Illinois Association of Water Pollution Control Operators
Post Office Box 59
Rantou[. ]j]inois 6] 866
Telephone\ 815/303-3745 \

Congratulations on your nomination. /' .

r
Sincerely,

.0.FM,Ihl,
David L. Miller
Executive Director
Illinois Association of Water Pollution Control Operators

©
./

/

Cc:RossNelson,Operator t"'l

"LET US MAKE IT PERFECTW CLEAR"


